
Common Council

City of Appleton

Meeting Agenda - Final

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

Council Chambers7:00 PMWednesday, April 19, 2023

A. CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG

D. ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONS

E. ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADS

F. APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES

23-0401 Common Council Meeting Minutes of April 5, 2023

 

CC Minutes 4-5-23.pdfAttachments:

G. BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYOR

23-0402 Appleton Housing Authority Appointment

 

AHA Appt Memo.pdfAttachments:

H. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

I. PUBLIC HEARINGS

J. SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

K. ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAY

L. COMMITTEE REPORTS

1. MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE

Page 1 City of Appleton Printed on 4/14/2023

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22577
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=448202a1-63e6-44f6-b442-317436cffe9a.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22578
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=e2180ea8-3510-4151-b216-50aed5340cf4.pdf


April 19, 2023Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

23-0276 Resolution #2-R-23 Resolution to Eliminate No Mow May

 

#2-R-23 Resolution to Eliminate No Mow May (1).pdf

DPW No Mow May Memo (4-12-23).pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

3/20/23 Municipal Services 

Committee

held

4/10/23 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

4/10/23 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for denial

23-0336 Request from Legendairy Cookies ‘N Creamery for a street occupancy 

permit to place tables and chairs in the College Avenue beautification strip 

at 101 E. College Avenue.  

 

Legendairy Occupancy Permit.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/10/23 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

23-0337 Award Complete Streets/Pedestrian Study Contract to ALTA Planning + 

Design in an amount not to exceed $75,000.00.  

 

Complete Street Ped Crossing Study Contract Award.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/10/23 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

23-0338 Award of contract for 2023 Parking Ramp Professional Engineering and 

Construction Administration Services to Desman Design Management in 

the amount not to exceed $50,480.00.

 

Award of Contract - Desman 2023 Parking Ramp Maintenance Design Services.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/10/23 Municipal Services 

Committee

recommended for approval

2. MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE

Page 2 City of Appleton Printed on 4/14/2023

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22452
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7afaf936-dbf8-46eb-a68c-2876c37ce664.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4bf54017-1d4a-438e-b722-a5907a6d44ae.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22512
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8e13eb99-b01d-46d6-ba99-d2e82da4144b.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22513
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=294cd341-611d-4954-a5b8-8278f040b393.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22514
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=009c4f06-26da-46ff-80c8-dcb219a8280a.pdf


April 19, 2023Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

23-0225 Class "B" Beer and Reserve "Class B" Liquor Permanent Premise 

Amendment application for Jackson Investment Group LLC d/b/a Mr 

Frogs, April Anderson, Agent, located at 409 W College Ave, contingent 

upon approval from the Community Development and Inspections 

departments.

Mr Frogs S&L.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/12/23 Safety and Licensing 

Committee

recommended for approval

3. MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION

23-0332 Request to approve Special Use Permit #2-23 to expand an existing 

outdoor patio with alcohol sales and service associated with a tavern (Mr. 

Frogs) located at 409 West College Avenue (Tax Id #31-3-1032-00), as 

shown on the attached maps, development plans, and per attached plan of 

operation, to run with the land subject to the conditions in the attached staff 

report and approve attached Resolution (2/3 vote of Common Council 

required for approval)

StaffReport_Mr.Frogs_409WCollegeAve_SUP_For4-12-23.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/12/23 City Plan Commission recommended for approval

4. MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE

23-0349 Action Item:  Irish Fest of the Fox Cities requests permission to hold a 

ticketed private Special Event in Jones Park on September 15-16, 2023 

for Irish Fest

 

Irish Fest Jones Park Special Event.docxAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/10/23 Parks and Recreation 

Committee

recommended for approval

23-0350 Action Item:  Adopt the Proposed Revised Athletic Facilities Rental and 

Fee Schedule Policy

 

Athletic Field Policy Memo.docx

2023 Athletic Facilities Policy - REDLINE.pdf

2023 Athletic Facilities Policy - FINAL.docx

Attachments:

Legislative History 

4/10/23 Parks and Recreation 

Committee

recommended for approval

Page 3 City of Appleton Printed on 4/14/2023

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22401
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=51e897ab-ddaf-4938-9c93-d561202980ce.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22508
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=d213488e-c5eb-48dd-8c22-b489c7ec0a48.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22525
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=3ed67253-d673-4f96-9bcc-45bd3014d1f1.docx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22526
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=6bd00c41-c940-447d-80ad-4bcdfe838843.docx
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=4aece083-1254-441a-af9c-b98ea724d67f.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=121f5279-687b-43bc-a9e5-f24c954cc043.docx


April 19, 2023Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

5. MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE

23-0354 Request to approve the following 2023 Budget Amendment

Water Utility

Water Lake Station Gate Upgrade + $188,139

Fund Balance + $188,139

to record 2022-23 Budget Carryover that should have been included in 

request as Under Contract of $13,814 and Not Under Contract of 

$174,325, for the replacement and upgrade of the gate at the Water Lake 

Station

Legislative History 

4/10/23 Finance Committee recommended for approval

23-0355 Request to approve the AWWTP A&S Buildings Roof Repairs Project 

Engineering Services Amendment #1, increasing Specialty Engineering 

Group, LLC’s total contract amount by $39,600 from $18,500 to $58,100.

 

2023 AWWTP Roofing Design Contract Ammendment.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/10/23 Finance Committee recommended for approval

23-0356 Request to award the 2023 AWWTP A-Building Renovation Project 

contract to RJM Construction, LLC. in the amount of $262,328 with a 

contingency of $36,000 for a project total not to exceed $298,328.

 

2023 AWWTP A-Building Ceiling Renovation Project.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/10/23 Finance Committee recommended for approval

23-0357 Request to award Unit J-23 Mini Storm Sewer Construction to M & E 

Construction, LLC. in an amount not to exceed $200,000.

Contract Unit J-23.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/10/23 Finance Committee recommended for approval

23-0358 Request to award Unit X-23 Water Main Reconstruction (Rebid) to Kruczek 

Construction Inc. in the amount of $1,044,444 with a 5% contingency of 

$52,222 for a project total not to exceed $1,096,666.

Contract Unit X-23 (Rebid).pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/10/23 Finance Committee recommended for approval

Page 4 City of Appleton Printed on 4/14/2023

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22530
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22531
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=cd4cf856-dd57-4490-9a0e-ec6fff70e619.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22532
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=9acf33f6-f97f-403f-b082-2b27d46d2699.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22533
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=1ca34b7d-35ee-488b-a880-79ecb7ac9b63.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22534
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=40bdd59b-66d2-4950-884a-18d50b20e468.pdf


April 19, 2023Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

23-0362 CEA Review Committee Report

 

CEA Review Committee Mtg Minutes 3-20-2023.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/10/23 Finance Committee recommended for approval

6. MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

7. MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE

23-0341 Award Unit F-23 Sanitary & Storm Sewer Cleaning and Televising to 

Green Bay Pipe & TV, LLC in an amount not to exceed $266,500.

 

Utilities Committee - 04-11-23 - Award of Contract Unit F-23.pdfAttachments:

Legislative History 

4/11/23 Utilities Committee recommended for approval

8. MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE

23-0334 Request to Approve Community and Economic Development / Public 

Works Re-organization. 

 

CED Re-org.pdf

Community & Economic Development DRAFT 3.2023.pdf

Public Works DRAFT 3.27.23 (1).pdf

Attachments:

Legislative History 

4/12/23 Human Resources & 

Information Technology 

Committee

recommended for approval

9. MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION

10. MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH

M. CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMS

N. ITEMS HELD

O. ORDINANCES

P. LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION

Page 5 City of Appleton Printed on 4/14/2023

https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22538
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=23af23b0-8042-4156-8d5c-bd15226bee67.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22517
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0af245e6-85ae-478b-9e72-9b3fa5c22a32.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22510
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=58465eb2-34fc-48ab-8244-d48e683f6235.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=12473cbc-d14e-4cff-94d7-b203684c9e8e.pdf
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=5ae8238d-56ca-4163-ba55-7067a1ae2452.pdf


April 19, 2023Common Council Meeting Agenda - Final

Q. RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION

R. OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESS

S. ADJOURN

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Reasonable accommodations for persons with disabilities will be made upon request and 

if feasible.  

Remote meeting attendance may be permitted pursuant to Section 2-29 of the Appleton 

Municipal Code and Rules of Council.

*We are currently experiencing intermittent issues/outages with our audio/video 

equipment.  Meeting live streams and recordings are operational but unreliable at times .  

This is due to delays in receiving necessary system hardware components.  We continue 

to look for solutions in the interim and we hope to have these issues resolved soon.

Page 6 City of Appleton Printed on 4/14/2023



100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

Common Council

7:00 PM Council ChambersWednesday, April 5, 2023

CALL TO ORDERA.

The meeting was called to order by Mayor Woodford at 7:02 p.m.

INVOCATIONB.

The Invocation was offered by Alderperson Del Toro.

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAGC.

ROLL CALL OF ALDERPERSONSD.

Alderperson Hartzheim appeared virtually.

Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt, Alderperson Chad Doran and Mayor Jake 

Woodford

Present: 16 - 

ROLL CALL OF OFFICERS AND DEPARTMENT HEADSE.

All departments were represented.

APPROVAL OF PREVIOUS COUNCIL MEETING MINUTESF.

23-0313 Common Council Meeting Minutes of March 15, 2023

 

CC Minutes 3-15-23.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Meltzer moved, seconded by Alderperson Firkus, that the Minutes 

be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Page 1City of Appleton



April 5, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

BUSINESS PRESENTED BY THE MAYORG.

23-0323 Recognition of poems selected for the 2023 Sidewalk Poetry Program

 

23-0325 Proclamations:

  - Golden Rule Day 

  - Hemophilia Awareness Day

  - Earth Day

  - Arbor Day

  - Public Health Week

  - Library Week

  - Autism Acceptance Month 

 

Golden Rule Day Proclamation.pdf

Hemophilia Awareness Day Proclamation.pdf

Earth Day Proclamation.pdf

Arbor Day Proclamation.pdf

Public Health Week Proclamation.pdf

Library Week Proclamation.pdf

Autism Acceptance Month Proclamation.pdf

Attachments:

23-0324 Alder send-off

 

Alderperson Thao was recognized for her service on the Council.

23-0326 Committee Appointments & Reappointments 

 

Committee Appointments ' Reappointments 4'5'2023.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Fenton, that the 

Appointments be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 2City of Appleton



April 5, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

PUBLIC PARTICIPATIONH.

The following spoke regarding Item 23-0286 College Avenue Lane Reconfiguration Pilot 

Project:

Deb Matz, 500 W Franklin St.

Anders Hanhan, 401 E College Ave.

Deb Blank, 2623 E Sundance Dr.

Jason Brozek, 1402 N Division St.

Matthew Pavlik, 712 E Boldt Way

Jennifer Stephany, 533 W College Ave. Ste. 100

David Oliver, 833 E Franklin St.

Oliver Zornow, 1009 N Oneida St.

Ron Kahler, 825 N Kensington Dr.

The following spoke regarding Item 23-0215 CDBG Fund Distribution:

Lisa Strandberg, 605 E Hancock St.

Colleen Bies, 1191 N Casaloma Dr

PUBLIC HEARINGSI.

23-0249 Public Hearing for Planned Development #1-01 Major Amendment - 

Meade Pond, LLC

 

Public Hearing Notice PD 1-01 Amendment.pdfAttachments:

The public hearing was held, no one spoke during the hearing.

SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSJ.

ESTABLISH ORDER OF THE DAYK.

23-0215 Request to approve the REVISED 2023-2024PY Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) funding as specified in the attached 

community partner allocation recommendations

Alloc Recs 2023 Final Award Memo to CEDC 3-22-23.pdf

2023 CDBG Community Partner Award Recommendations 

Updated.pdf

2023 CDBG Simple Summary Award Recommendations Updated.pdf

Alloc Recs Memo to CEDC 11-9-22.pdf

Attachments:

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Alfheim, that the CDBG 

Funding Allocations be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Page 3City of Appleton



April 5, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

23-0286 Approve College Avenue Lane Reconfiguration Pilot Project

College Avenue Lane Reconfiguration Consideration.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Firkus moved, seconded by Alderperson Fenton, that the College 

Avenue Reconfiguration Pilot Project be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by 

the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and 

Alderperson Chad Doran

14 - 

Nay: Alderperson Christopher Croatt1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

23-0285

Approve Memorandum of Understanding with Bird Rides, Inc. to initiate a 

Dockless, Stand-up Electric Scooter Program for 2023.  

Bird Rides MOU.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Fenton, that the MOU be 

approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Brad Firkus, Alderperson Katie 

Van Zeeland, Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Joss Thyssen, 

Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson Kristin 

Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, Alderperson 

Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

12 - 

Nay: Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Israel Del Toro and Alderperson 

Maiyoua Thao

3 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Page 4City of Appleton



April 5, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

23-0206 Request to approve Major Amendment to Planned Development (PD) 

Overlay District #1-01 for Meade Pond LLC for 28 parcels located on E. 

Pondview Court amending the recorded Implementation Plan Document 

#1417611 as specified in the attached staff report and Amended 

Implementation Plan Document and subject to the condition listed 

(Associated with Action Item #23-0207)

StaffReport_MeadePondLLC_PD#1-01_MajorAmend_For3-8-23.pdfAttachments:

The Council took a short recess at 9:04 p.m. reconvening at 9:11 p.m.

Alderperson Croatt moved, seconded by Alderperson Jones, that the PD 

Amendment be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

23-0207 Request to approve The Villas at Meade Pond Preliminary Plat as shown 

on the attached maps and subject to the conditions in the attached staff 

report (Associated with Action Item #23-0206)

StaffReport_VillasatMeadePond_PreliminaryPlat_For3-8-23.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Croatt, that the Plat be 

approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

23-0296 Request to reject all bids for Unit X-23 Water Main Reconstruction. 

 

Bid Rejection - Unit X-23.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Fenton moved, seconded by Alderperson Firkus, that the bid 

rejection be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim and 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt

14 - 

Page 5City of Appleton



April 5, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

Nay: Alderperson Chad Doran1 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

COMMITTEE REPORTSL.

Balance of the action items on the agenda.

Alderperson Croatt moved, Alderperson Firkus seconded, to approve the 

balance of the agenda.  The motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

MINUTES OF THE MUNICIPAL SERVICES COMMITTEE1.

23-0274 Approve Contract Amendment / Change Order No. 1 to contract Unit 

T-21 Movable Bridge Inspections with AECOM, to perform bridge 

inspections and prepare a rehabilitation report for the Lawe Street 

Bascule Bridge, per WisDOT Trans 213 Local Bridge Program 

requirements, in the amount of $11,400.00 resulting in no change to 

contract contingency.  Overall contract increases from $95,061.00 to 

$106,461.00. 

Contract Amendment-Change Order No.1  Unit T-21.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0292 Request from Hilton Appleton Paper Valley Hotel for a Street Occupancy 

Permit to place tables and chairs in the College Avenue beautification 

strip at 333 W. College Avenue.  

Hilton Street Occupancy Permit.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE SAFETY AND LICENSING COMMITTEE2.

23-0289 Request to Apply for Capital Credit Union's Elevate Communities Grant

 

Capital Credit Union Elevate Communities Program Grant Tracking 

Form.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 6City of Appleton



April 5, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

23-0251 Class "A" Beer and "Class A" Liquor License application for Tiffani's 

Bridal & Consignment d/b/a Tiffani's Bridal, Tiffani Ebben, Agent, located 

at 210 W College Ave 2nd Floor, contingent upon approval from the 

Community Development, Health and Inspections departments.

Tiffani's Bridal.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0247 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Permanent Premise 

Amendment application for Stone Arch Brewpub Inc, Steven Lonsway, 

Agent, located at 1004 S Olde Oneida St, contingent upon approval from 

the Community Development and Inspections departments.

Stone Arch Brewpub.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0214 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor Temporary Premise Amendment 

application for Sangria's Mexican Grill, Sarah Gregory, Agent, located at 

215 S Memorial Dr, on May 5, 2023, contingent upon approval from the 

Finance department.

Sangrias Mexican Grill S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0327 Class "B" Beer and "Class B" Liquor License Change of Premise 

application for Calaveras Fine Fusion LLC d/b/a Calaveras Fine Fusion, 

Rebekka Garcia, Agent, New location at 511 W College Ave, contingent 

upon approval from all departments.

Calaveras Fine Fusion.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0284 Secondhand Mall/Flea License renewal application for Ye Old Goat, 

Meghan Keller, applicant, located at 1919 E Calumet St.

Ye Old Goat S&L.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE CITY PLAN COMMISSION3.

Page 7City of Appleton



April 5, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

23-0262 Request to approve Special Use Permit #1-23 for an automobile sales 

and display lot use located at 520 East Northland Avenue (Tax Id 

#31-6-3150-00), as shown on the attached maps and per attached plan 

of operation, to run with the land subject to the conditions in the attached 

staff report and approve attached Resolution (2/3 vote of Common 

Council required for approval)

StaffReport_MidValleyMotors_SUP_For03-22-23.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0263 Request to approve the Seville Properties Ballard & Werner Road 

Annexation consisting of approximately 39.913 acres located at N2751 

County Road EE, currently in the Town of Center, as shown on the 

attached maps, subject to the stipulation in the attached staff report

StaffReport_SevilleProperties_Ballard-WernerRd_Annexation_For3-22-

23.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE PARKS AND RECREATION COMMITTEE4.

MINUTES OF THE FINANCE COMMITTEE5.

23-0295 Request to award Unit E-23 Miscellaneous Concrete & Street Excavation 

Repairs to Al Dix Concrete, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $473,850.

 

Unit E-23.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0298 Request to approve the 2022-2023 Budget carryover appropriations:

1. Items not under contract $39,533,841

2. Items requesting Special Consideration $293,616

(2/3 vote of Council required)

 

Not Under Contract 2022-2023 Carryover.pdf

Special Consideration 2022-2023 Carryover.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 8City of Appleton



April 5, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

23-0303 Request to approve the following 2022 Budget amendments:

Community Development Block Grant Fund

Federal Grant +$97,393

Grant Payments       +$97,393

to record additional federal funds received in Community Development 

Block Grant program (2/3 vote of Council required)

Emergency Shelter Grand Fund

Federal Grant +$302,687

Grant Payment       +$302,687

to record additional funds received in the Emergency Shelter Grant 

program (2/3 vote of Council required)

Room Tax Administration Fund

Room Taxes +$78,405

Other Contracts/Obligation +$78,405

to record additional room taxes received (2/3 vote of Council required)

Wheel Tax Fund

Wheel Tax +$80,469

Transfer Out - General Fund +$80,469

to record additional wheel taxes received (2/3 vote of Council required)

Bioterrorism Grant Fund

Health Grants      +$18,246

Salaries/Fringes            +$18,246

to record additional Bioterrorism Grant funds received (2/3 vote of 

Council required)

Debt Service Fund

Premium on Debt Issue                             +$222,356

Consulting Services                                      +$   9,002 

Interest Expense                +$213,354

to record additional expense related to the 2022 debt issue (2/3 vote of 

Council required)

Page 9City of Appleton



April 5, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

TIF #11 Fund

Fund Balance Applied +$116,265

Tax Refunds +$  41,460

Salaries/Fringe +$  74,805

to record additional expense for tax refunds issued and increased salary 

and fringe costs (2/3 vote of Council required)

General Fund

Salaries/Fringe Benefits - Human Resources        +$23,096

Salaries/Fringe Benefits - Community & Economic Dev.          +$17,512

Wage Reserve                            -$40,608

to allocate wage reserve funds (2/3 vote of Council required)

2022 Final Budget Adjustments.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0306 Request to award Unit D-23 Sidewalk Construction to BMD Concrete 
Innovations in an amount not to exceed $293,000.

Unit D-23.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE COMMUNITY AND ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE6.

MINUTES OF THE UTILITIES COMMITTEE7.

23-0291 Award Unit R-23 Chemical Root Foaming of Sanitary Sewers to Duke's 

Root Control, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $25,000.

 

Attachment - Utilities Committee - 03-21-23 - Award of Contract Unit 

R-23.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0300 Award the Sole Source Purchase of Secondary Clarifier Algae Sweep 

System from Ford Hall Company, Inc., in the amount of $131,040 with a 

15% contingency of $19,656 for a project total not to exceed $150,696.

 

Secondary Clarifier Algae Sweep System Sole Source Ford Hall.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

Page 10City of Appleton



April 5, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

23-0301 Sole Source Engineering Services Contract to McMahon as part of 

Phase II Belt Filter Press Equipment Upgrades Project in the amount of 

$162,000 with a 15% contingency of $24,300 for a Project Total not to 

exceed $186,300.

 

Engineering Services Contract Phase II Belt Filter Press Equipment 

Upgrades Sole Source McMahon.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0302 Sole Source Engineering Services Contract to McMahon as part of the 

2023 Digester Piping and Heat Exchanger Replacement Project in the 

amount of $85,300 with a 15% contingency of $12,795 for a Project Total 

not to exceed $98,095.

 

2023 Digester Piping and Heat Exchanger Replacement Project Sole 

Source McMahon.pdf

Attachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

23-0304 Award purchase of Primary Digester Circulation Pump from Crane 

Engineering in the amount of $27,774.

 

230317_CraneEngineering_DigCirPumpPurchase.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE HUMAN RESOURCES & INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

COMMITTEE
8.

MINUTES OF THE FOX CITIES TRANSIT COMMISSION9.

23-0280 Authorization to Award Tire Leasing contract to Bridgestone Americas 

Tire Operations, LLC

Award Recommendation Bridgestone.pdfAttachments:

This Report Action Item was approved.

MINUTES OF THE BOARD OF HEALTH10.

CONSOLIDATED ACTION ITEMSM.

ITEMS HELDN.

Page 11City of Appleton



April 5, 2023Common Council Meeting Minutes - Final

ORDINANCESO.

23-0314 Ordinance #14-23 (Seville Properties Ballard & Werner Road 

Annexation)

 

Ordinances to Council 4-5-23.pdfAttachments:

Alderperson Meltzer moved, seconded by Alderperson Jones, that the 

Annexation Ordinance be approved. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

LICENSE APPLICATIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS REFERRED TO 

COMMITTEES OF JURISDICTION
P.

RESOLUTIONS SUBMITTED BY ALDERPERSONS REFERRED TO COMMITTEES 

OF JURISDICTION
Q.

OTHER COUNCIL BUSINESSR.

ADJOURNS.

Alderperson Del Toro moved, seconded by Alderperson Croatt, that the 

meeting be adjourned at 9:21 p.m. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following 

vote:

Aye: Alderperson William Siebers, Alderperson Vered Meltzer, Alderperson Brad 

Firkus, Alderperson Israel Del Toro, Alderperson Katie Van Zeeland, 

Alderperson Denise Fenton, Alderperson Maiyoua Thao, Alderperson Joss 

Thyssen, Alderperson Alex Schultz, Alderperson Vaya Jones, Alderperson 

Kristin Alfheim, Alderperson Nate Wolff, Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, 

Alderperson Christopher Croatt and Alderperson Chad Doran

15 - 

Abstained: Mayor Jake Woodford1 - 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

Page 12City of Appleton





#2-R-23 
Resolution to eliminate No Mow May 

 
Date: March 15, 2023 
Submitted By: Chad Doran District 15 
Referred To: Municipal Services Committee 
 
Whereas the No Mow May initiative was made a permanent part of the city’s ordinances in 
2022, largely based on the data provided in a study looking at the quantity of bees and other 
pollinators found in mowed vs. unmowed lawns, and;  
 
Whereas the study was presented to the Common Council as proof that unmowed lawns in fact 
did show higher levels of bee richness and abundance, leading to the program being 
permanently adopted by Appleton and later by numerous other municipalities around Wisconsin, 
and; 
 
Whereas in November of 2022 the study was retracted by the authors of the paper as well as 
the publisher of the journal in which it appeared, and; 
 
Whereas the editor of the journal noted the findings of the study are “unreliable and could 
impact the results”, and; 
 
Whereas the retraction guidelines for the journal note that a paper should be retracted if the 
findings are unreliable, or the result of fabrication or falsification, and; 
 
Whereas as the basis for adoption of No Mow May, the science behind the study has been 
proven to not be reliable and other apiologists who study bees have said that long grass 
provides no discernible benefit for bees and other pollinators, now;  
 
Therefore be it resolved that on the basis of a lack of scientific evidence to support the No Mow 
May program, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby votes to eliminate the No Mow May 
program and delete references to it from the city code on the basis of a lack of scientific 
evidence to support the program, and repeal Ordinance 26-22 adopted on April 6, 2022 and 
restore Section 12-58 to its form prior to that date in order to enforce the city’s long grass 
ordinance during the entire growing season, including the month of May. 
 
 



DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911 

Phone (920) 832-6474 

 
TO:   Danielle Block, Director of Public Works 
 

FROM:  Kurt W. Craanen, Inspections Supervisor 
    

SUBJECT:   Requested Information - No Mow May 
 

DATE:  April 12, 2023 

▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬▬ 
 

No Mow May has not significantly increased the number of complaints the Inspections Division 

received, nor the number of work orders issued. These work orders include the notice to cut tall 

grass/weeds on private lots and the future follow up inspection. The chart below shows the 

number of complaints received and work orders issued from 2015 to 2022. 

 

 
 

Staff time spent on grass and weed complaints did not increase in 2020, 2021 and 2022. The 

number of complaints and subsequent works orders trended in a comparable manner to previous 

years. 

20
32 24

37
22 21

31 22

0

50

100

150

200

250

300

350

400

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

G R A S S / W E E D  C O M P L A I N T S  A N D  W O R K  O R D E R S

2015-2022

Work Orders Complaints No Mow May



 

  

Rev. 04-10-15 

Applicant Information 

Name (print): 

Address: 

Applicant Signature: 

PERMIT TO OCCUPY 
THE 

PUBLIC RIGHT-OF-WAY 

Company: 

Telephone: 

e-mail: 

Permit #: - - 

Effective Date: 

Expiration Date: 

Fee: 

Paid (yes or no): 

 

FAX: 

Date: 

Occupancy Information 

General Description: 

Street Address: 
- or-

Street:

 

From:  

Tax Key No.: 

To: 

Multiple Streets:

(Department use only) 
Occupancy Type Sub-Type Location 

Permanent ($40) Sandwich Board Sidewalk 

Temporary - max. 35 days ($40) Tables / Chairs Terrace 

Amenity/Annual ($40) Dumpster Roadway 

Blanket/Annual ($250) POD / Container 

Block Party ($15) Obstruction / Other 

Additional Requirements 
Plan/Sketch Certificate of Insurance Bond 

Other:  

Traffic Control Requirements N/A Contact Traffic Division (832-2379) 1 business day prior to any 

Type of Street: 

Arterial/CBD 

Collector 

Local 

Approved by: 

Proposed Traffic Control: 

City Manual Page(s)      

State Manual Page(s)     

Other (attach plan) 

Date: 

lane closure, or 2 business days prior to a full road closure. 

Additional  Requirements: 

This permit approval is subject to the following conditions: 

1. Permittee is responsible to obtain any further permits that may be required as part of this occupancy.

2. Permittee shall adhere to any plan(s) that were submitted to the City of Appleton as part of this application.

3. This permit is subject to IMMEDIATE REVOCATION and/or issuance of a MUNCIPAL CITATION if conditions of the permit are not met.
4. This permit is subject to IMMEDIATE REVOCATION if unfavorable traffic conditions develop during the period the occupancy is permitted.

5.

6.

This permit is issued to the applicant upon payment of the permit fee and is expressly limited to the location and type described herein. The applicant, in exchange for receiving this 
permit, warranties that all street occupancies will be performed in conformity to City ordinances, standards and policies, be properly barricaded and lighted, and be performed in a safe 
manner. By applying for and accepting this permit, the applicant assumes full liability and/or any costs incurred by the City for corrective work required to bring the subject area into 
compliance with said ordinances, standards, policies and permit conditions. No occupancy shall occur prior to approval of this permit by the Department of Public Works. 

The Grantee shall guarantee at their expense, the repair or replacement of pavement, sidewalk and any other facilities within the public right-of-way damaged or destroyed by the Grantee or 
any sub-contractor working for them. The Grantee shall assume complete and full liability and responsibility, in accordance with existing ordinances and policies, in the event of injury or 
damage to persons or property resulting from their facilities within the public right-of-way. 

APPROVED BY: DATE: 
(Department of Public Works) 

Jeremy Mattso
101 E College Ave.
Appleton WI 54911

Legendairy Cookies 'N Creamery
(920)619-3285
Contact@LegendairyCnC.com

3/29/2023

Tables & Chairs for customers

101 E. College Ave. Appleton WI, 54911

✔
✔ ✔

x

✔







Page 1 of 1 
https://cityofappleton-my.sharepoint.com/personal/blockdl_appleton_org/Documents/Municipal Services Committee/2023/04/2023.04.10/Complete Street Ped Crossing Study Contract Award.docx 

 
 
 
To: Municipal Services Committee 
From: Eric Lom, P.E., City Traffic Engineer 
Date: March 29, 2023 
Re: Complete Streets / Ped Study: Contract Award 
  
 
At its 3/16/22 meeting, the Common Council approved the allocation of $75,000 to hire a consultant to evaluate the 
city’s Enhanced Crosswalk Program (Agenda Item #22-0054).  Subsequently, at its 3/1/23 meeting, the Common 
Council approved the contract scope for this project, an approved amendment to solicit aldermanic feedback during 
the study.  This addition to the scope of services has been made.   
 
As has been noted in recent meetings, staff is recommending the City contract with our preferred bike & pedestrian 
consultant (ALTA Planning + Design) based on their exceptional performance record with the City and their 
familiarity with our situation. 
 
As such, we recommend award of the contract to ALTA Planning + Design based on the Council-approved scope of 
services in an amount not to exceed $75,000. 

“. . .   meeting community needs . . .  enhancing quality of life.”  
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Engineering Division – Traffic Section 
2625 E. Glendale Avenue 

Appleton, WI  54911 
TEL  (920) 832-5580 
FAX  (920) 832-5570 



                 

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS 

Engineering Division 
100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911 

TEL (920) 832-6474 

                                                                                    FAX (920) 832-6489 

 

MEMO 

 
TO:  Municipal Services Committee 

 

FROM: Ross Buetow, Deputy Director of Public Works 

   

SUBJECT: Professional Engineering and Construction Administration Services - 2023 Repair and 

Maintenance Program for the Red, Yellow, and Green Parking Ramps 

 

DATE:  April 10, 2023 

 
 

 

In February of 2021, the Common Council authorized a sole source professional services agreement with 

Desman Design Management (“Desman”) for planning, design and administrative services related to the 

structural maintenance of the City’s public parking ramps.  This agreement was authorized for a five-year 

period, subject to continued satisfactory performance by Desman. 

 

In 2022, Desman completed a comprehensive update to their original 2019 structural condition analysis 

of all three of the City’s parking ramps.  The update included detailed descriptions of the structural 

condition of each ramp as well as general recommendations for short and long-term maintenance and 

repair needs. 

 

In response to a 2023 request from the Department of Public Works, Desman has provided a proposal for 

professional engineering & construction administration services for repair and maintenance activities in 

the Red, Yellow, and Green Parking Ramps. A copy of the proposal accompanies this memo. Their 

proposed 2023 maintenance activities have been selected and prioritized based on their 2022 structural 

condition analysis.  Desman’s proposed fee for these services is $50,480.00. 

 

There is currently $40,000.00 allocated in the 2023 Parking budget for consulting services, plus an 

additional $6,940.00 of 2022 consulting service funds carried over to 2023. An additional $3,540.00 of 

Parking Repairs and Maintenance funds would be used to fully fund the proposed scope of services. 

 

In summary, we recommend award of contract for 2023 Parking Ramp Professional Engineering and 

Construction Administration Services to Desman Design Management in an amount not to exceed 

$50,480.00. 

 

Thank you for your consideration. 

 

 
J:\ENGINEERING\3MANAGEMENT\BUETOW R\PROJECTS\PARKING\2023\MEMO - DESMAN - PARKING RAMP CONSULTING SERVICES - 2023 .DOCX 



   
 

 

20 N. CLARK STREET, 4th FLOOR, CHICAGO, IL  60602 www.DESMAN.com  PHONE 312.263.8400    FAX 312.263.8406 
 

BOSTON           CHICAGO           CLEVELAND           DENVER           FT.  LAUDERDALE           HARTFORD           NEW YORK           PITTSBURGH           WASHINGTON D.C.         

ARCHITECTS 
STRUCTURAL ENGINEERS 

PLANNERS 
PARKING CONSULTANTS 

RESTORATION ENGINEERS 
GREEN PARKING CONSULTING 

 
March 22nd, 2023 
 
 
Mr. Ross Buetow 
Deputy Director of Public Works | City Engineer 
City of Appleton 
Appleton, WI 54911 
 
Sent via email to: Ross.Buetow@appleton.org 
 
Re:   Proposal for Professional Engineering & Construction Administration Services 2023 Repair and 

Maintenance Program for the Red, Yellow, and Green Parking Garages in Appleton, WI 

Dear Mr. Buetow: 

In response to our 2/23/23 discussion, DESMAN is pleased to submit the following proposal to the City of 
Appleton (Appleton) to provide professional services for the Red, Yellow, and Green Parking garages in 
the City of Appleton, WI per the recommendations provided in our previous condition assessment report.   

 UNDERSTANDING OF CAPEX WORK SCOPE 

As discussed during our 2/23/23 meeting Appleton expects an estimate repair budget of roughly $700,000 
for 2023.  That budget is currently intended to be used to address the 2023 priority repair items in the 
Red and Green Garages identified in DESMAN’s current condition assessment report as well as the 2024 
scope recommended for the Yellow Parking Garage. 

 SCOPE OF SERVICES  

 DESMAN proposes the following SCOPE OF SERVICES for the Red, Yellow, and Green Parking Garages in 
2023: 

PHASE II TASKS - Construction Documents (CD’s) 

A. Review existing documents within our files, including existing drawings, photos, notes and our most 
recent condition assessment report, etc. 

B. Discuss with Appleton staff the construction budget, user requirements, and scope of repair work and 
verify and quantify the types, locations and other details of the repairs in order to prepare a 
Contractor bid package for 2023 repair and maintenance project at each garage. 

C. Prepare a single bid package for 2023 Repair and Maintenance work.  The 2023 Repair and 
Maintenance program will be competitively bid with the intent to award all properties to one 
contractor (although individual awards are possible). The bid package will describe the work and 
generally consist of the following components: 

1. Construction drawings/sketches and details, as required, illustrating repairs, removal and 
replacement and installation of new products, as applicable, for budgeted work categories listed 
and described in the current DESMAN Condition Assessment Report and confirmed by discussions 
with Appleton. 

2. Technical specifications, as required, for each work category shown under item D.1., including 
outline of performance criteria, repair procedures, material testing requirements during 
construction, warranties, etc. 



     
Page 2 of 7    

 

 

3. Front-end requirements, as required, provided by Appleton and incorporated into the Project 
Manual such as; General and Special Conditions, Insurance Requirements, Bonding Requirements, 
Incentives and/or Liquidated Damages, as applicable. 

4. Proposal Form describing the work with estimated quantities formatted for payment based on a 
lump sum or unit price basis, as applicable.  

5. Work phasing plan, if applicable, that meets Appleton’s requirements for keeping the parking 
facilities open (or portion thereof) at all times during construction will be included. Details related 
to phasing of the work will be reviewed and approved by Appleton. 

D. Furnish up to two reproducible sets of the drawings and technical specifications or pdf electronic 
format files to Appleton at the 90% completion level for review and comment. If necessary, DESMAN 
will schedule a meeting or conference call with Appleton to discuss comments on the documents and 
bidding and construction schedules. 

E. DESMAN will incorporate comments from Appleton and issue finalized drawings and technical 
specifications. 

PHASE III TASKS - Contractor Proposal & Contract Negotiations 

A. Issue the bid package to the Contractor(s), in electronic PDF file format, transmitted via email.  

B. Attend a Pre-bid Conference at one or several properties (to be determined with Appleton), conduct 
a walk-through site visit at that property with the Contractor(s), and Appleton personnel. Based on 
Contractor(s) Requests for Information (RFI), DESMAN will prepare an Addenda and issue to the 
Contractor(s), if necessary, incorporating any changes or clarifications, which arise from the 
Conference.  

C. Review Contractor(s) bid(s) and provide an acceptance recommendation to Appleton. 

PHASE IV TASKS - Construction Observation & Contract Administration 

A. Conduct a Pre-Construction conference between DESMAN, the Contractor, Appleton, and other parties 
if appropriate and necessary for effective construction of the project. Clarify lines of communication, 
policies, routing of shop drawings, correspondence, etc.  DESMAN will prepare an agenda and distribute 
meeting minutes.  

B. Maintain the following documents, as applicable, during construction and deliver to Appleton upon 
project completion:  

1. Reports of job conferences, meetings, and discussions among DESMAN, Appleton and the Contractor 
via meeting notes, emails, etc.;  

2. Shop drawings and samples submissions as provided by the Contractor;  

3. One set of approved construction Contract Documents; 

4. Addenda, Change Orders or Construction Change Directives if issued; 

5. Additional drawings issued subsequent to execution of the construction Contract Documents; 

6. DESMAN clarifications and interpretations of the construction Contract Documents if required; 

7. Progress Reports from periodic on-site observations; 

8. Names, addresses and telephone numbers of the Contractor, subcontractors, and major suppliers 
of materials and equipment as supplied by the Contractor; 



     
Page 3 of 7    

 

 

9. “As Built” set of record construction documents prepared and submitted by the Contractor and 
reviewed by DESMAN, and Appleton; 

C. Conduct periodic on-site observations of the repair work at intervals appropriate to the stage of 
construction to become familiar with the progress and quality of the work completed.  The number of 
anticipated site visits per project (including a pre-construction conference and a substantial completion 
visit) are listed in the appropriate section of the included bid form.  DESMAN will make critical 
observations at the beginning of each repair phase to observe methods of material removal, surface 
preparation, and installation procedures.  On the basis of the on-site observations, DESMAN shall keep 
Appleton informed of the progress and quality of the work, and shall endeavor to guard against defects 
and deficiencies in the work.  A Site Observation Report will be completed with each site visit and 
submitted to Appleton and others as appropriate.  

D. Review and respond to requests for information (“RFI’s”).  

E. Review and certify Contractor's Applications for Payment.  DESMAN will verify the quantities of work, 
which are the basis of the payment request. 

F. Review, provide recommendations or take other appropriate action upon Contractor's submittals such 
as Shop Drawings or Product Data and Samples; but only for the limited purpose of reviewing for 
conformance with information given and the design concept expressed in the Contract Documents.  

G. Review Contractor prepared Change Orders, including applications for extensions of construction 
time, and Construction Change Directives, with supporting documentation and data, if deemed 
necessary by DESMAN, and Appleton. DESMAN shall evaluate the cost and scheduling aspects of all 
change orders and, where necessary, negotiate with the Contractor to obtain a fair price for the work. 
DESMAN may authorize minor changes in the work not involving an adjustment in the Contract Sum 
or an extension of the Contract Time and which are consistent with the intent of the Contract 
Documents.  

H. Upon substantial completion of the work, when notified by the contractor, attend a site visit to 
prepare a list of observed items (Site Observation Report) to be completed or corrected before final 
completion of the contract for each phase of the project.  Contractor shall be responsible to prepare 
a punch list of work they believe needs to be completed or corrected prior to DESMAN’s substantial 
completion site visit for review.  

I. Upon completion of all work within the Contractors work scope, as accepted by Appleton, DESMAN 
will review and forward all waivers and warranties and execute the project closeout. 

J. Review a set of “As-Built” drawings prepared by the Contractor regarding the work completed. One 
set of copies of these documents will be reproduced and issued to Appleton along with a file version 
of the documents in electronic format. 

  



     
Page 4 of 7    

 

 

FEE SCHEDULE 

DESMAN will provide the above SCOPE OF SERVICES as outlined for PHASES II, III and IV for the Red, Yellow, 
and Green Parking Garages Repair and Maintenance work following lump sum fee schedule: 

 PHASE II TASKS - Construction Documents .................................................................. $21,600.00 
 PHASE III TASKS - Contract Negotiations ........................................................................ $2,880.00 
 PHASE IV TASKS - Construction Observation & Contract Administration .................... $25,200.00* 
 Total DESMAN Professional Fees for the TASKS II, III & IV .......................................... $49,680.00 

Itemized reimbursable expenses for printing costs of project deliverables and travel are expected to add 
about $800.00 to this sub-total.   
 
* The PHASE IV TASKS fee shown is a lump sum amount based upon the  hourly basis per the hourly rates 
listed under ADDITIONAL SERVICES.  PHASE IV fees are based on a 2023 repair and maintenance program 
and is based upon a construction phase schedule, to complete the scheduled repair/preventative 
maintenance work, of twenty weeks which includes services associated with punch-list and project close-
out. This fee also includes an average of 4 hours per week for administrative services along with eight 
visits to the projects (a pre-construction visit, six progress visits, and a substantial completion visit during 
Phase IV work. Should the actual construction period exceed twenty weeks in duration, or an average of 
more than 4 hours per week are expended, then an appropriate fee increase to DESMAN’s PHASE IV TASKS 
fee amount may be necessary.   
 
Invoices will be submitted each month and are due and payable within 30 days. 

QUALIFICATIONS TO THE SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The following qualifications to the SCOPE OF SERVICES apply: 

1. Observation, assessment, reporting and any responsibility regarding the discovery, presence, 
handling, removal and disposal of, or exposure of persons to, hazardous materials in any form at the 
project site, including but not limited to, asbestos, asbestos products, lead, polychlorinated biphenyl 
(PCB) or other toxic substance. 

2.  Material testing during the construction phase is not included.  This service is typically the 
responsibility of the selected contractor. 

3. Charges for reproduction and printing of construction documents for bidding and permitting; 
4. Permit Fees of any kind;  
5. Preparation of Public Filings or Permits; 

  



     
Page 5 of 7    

 

 

CLOSURE 

On behalf of DESMAN’s team of professionals, we appreciate this opportunity to submit the enclosed 
proposal. If you are in agreement with the information contained herein, please sign on the space provided 
below and return a copy of this signed page to DESMAN.  

 
Sincerely, 
 
DESMAN      Proposal Accepted by: 
       City of Appleton 
     
 
Jeffrey S. Henriksen, R.A. 
Senior Vice President  
 
 
 
Kyle Klepitch, PE (IL)  
Senior Associate 
  

      
Signature 
 
      
Name: 
 
      
Title: 
 
      
Date 
 
 



     
Page 6 of 7    

 

 

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF AGREEMENT 

The engagement of DESMAN, Inc. (“DESMAN”) by the City of Appleton (“Client”) is under the following 
terms and conditions, as applicable, and is an integral part of the Agreement between Client and DESMAN. 
 
1. Unless noted or otherwise requested, the fee estimate for the proposed Scope of Services is valid for 

60 days from the date of Proposal. 

2. All schedules set forth in the attached Scope of Services commence upon receipt of a signed 
Agreement unless noted otherwise, and if requested, a retainer.  All retainer amounts will be applied 
to the last invoice. A RETAINER OF $ 0    IS REQUIRED BEFORE WORK CAN COMMENCE UNDER THE 
AGREEMENT. 

3. Before DESMAN shall be called upon to provide its services there under, the Client shall provide 
DESMAN, in writing, with all necessary information to permit its proper performance of the services 
to be provided.  DESMAN shall be under no duty or obligation to verify the completeness or accuracy 
of the information provided by the Client and shall be entitled to fully rely thereon. 

4. Client shall provide the necessary access and right-of-entry for DESMAN to enter the Project site, and 
to all shops and yards where materials are prepared or stored in order to allow DESMAN to perform 
their services. 

5. The Client shall provide DESMAN with sufficient advance notice of required service so as to allow 
DESMAN a reasonable period of time to coordinate the assignment of its personnel. If DESMAN is 
required to delay commencement of its work, or is required to stop or interrupt the progress of its 
work due to action/inaction of Client, additional charges will be applicable and payable by the Client, 
which must be documented. 

6. DESMAN will not act to enforce the provisions of the contract drawings or specifications. Should 
DESMAN, in the proposal, accept responsibility for site observations or monitoring, it remains the 
responsibility of the Client to enforce the contract provisions and to effect corrections of any 
contractual deficiencies, which are discovered by DESMAN. Desman shall not be liable for the 
contractor’s failure to perform the work in accordance with the contract documents. 

7. Testing results apply only to the material samples actually tested.  Test specimens or samples will be 
disposed immediately upon completion of the test, unless otherwise agreed. 

8. Payment is due upon receipt of DESMAN’s invoices. Payment to DESMAN is the sole responsibility of 
signatory of this Agreement and is not subject to third party agreements. If payment is not received 
within thirty (30) days of receipt by Client, Client agrees to pay a finance charge on the principal 
amount of the past due account to one and one half (1 1/2%) percent per month. The Client agrees 
to pay DESMAN’s cost of collection of all amounts due and unpaid after sixty (60) days, including court 
costs and reasonable attorney's fees. 

9. Invoice payments must be kept current for work to continue. If the Client fails to pay any invoice due 
to DESMAN within 45 days of the date of the invoice, DESMAN may, without waiving any other claim 
or right against Client, suspend services under this Agreement until DESMAN has been paid in full all 
amounts due DESMAN and/or any of its Consultants and Subcontractors. 

  



     
Page 7 of 7    

 

 

10. DESMAN agrees to carry the following insurance during the term of this Agreement:  Workmen's 
compensation, General Liability, Professional Liability and Comprehensive Automobile Liability.  
Certificates of insurance will be furnished upon request. If the Client requires insurance coverage or 
coverage limits in excess of DESMAN’s normal policy coverage, and if such coverage is available, Client 
agrees to reimburse DESMAN for cost premiums to carry such additional coverage. 

11. DESMAN’s liability for any damage on account of any error, omission, or other professional negligence 
will be limited to a sum not-to-exceed the fee received under this Agreement.  DESMAN, its agents and 
employees shall not be liable for any lost profits or any claim or demand against Client by any other 
party unless caused by negligence or wanton act or omission of DESMAN. In no event shall DESMAN 
be liable for special, consequential or exemplary damages.  This provision shall supersede any other 
provision in this Agreement that may be deemed inconsistent with it.  No action, regardless of form, 
arising out of the service under this Agreement, may be brought by the Client more than one (1) year 
after the act or omission-giving rise to a cause of action has occurred. 

12. The Client shall indemnify, defend, and hold DESMAN, its officers, employees, and agents harmless 
from any and all claims, suits, losses, costs, and expenses, including but not limited to, court costs and 
reasonable attorney's fees arising or alleged to have arisen out of or to have resulted from the 
performance of DESMAN’s work on or about the subject Project, and caused in whole or in part by 
any negligent, willful, or wanton act or omission of the Client.    

13. In the event that either party brings any claim, suit, cause of action, of counterclaim against the other, 
to the extent that such party prevails upon such action, the non-prevailing party shall pay to the 
prevailing party the costs expended by the prevailing party to defend against such action including 
reasonable attorney's fees, witness fees, and other related expenses. 

14. DESMAN shall not be responsible for failure to perform or for delays in the performance of work, 
which arise out of causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of DESMAN. 

15. In entering into this Agreement, Client has relied only upon the warranties or representations (a) set 
forth in this Agreement; or (b) implied in law.  No oral warranties, representations or statements shall 
be considered a part of this Agreement or a basis upon which the Client relied in entering into this 
Agreement. No statements, representations, warranties or understandings, unless contained herein, 
exist between Client and DESMAN. 

16. Either party upon seven (7) days prior written notice may terminate this Agreement.  In the event of 
termination without cause, DESMAN shall be compensated by the Client for (a) all services performed 
up to and including the termination date, (b) reimbursable expenses and; (c) termination expenses. 

17. DESMAN’s review associated with the Report shall be limited to the examination of the condition of 
the structure/s as defined by the scope of work, for the sole purpose of determining work required. 
This report shall be limited to an unaided visual examination and does not include destructive or non-
destructive testing, non-invasive investigation techniques. 

18. DESMAN’s reports and/or documents defined by the scope of work shall not be construed to warrant 
or guarantee the structure/s and/or any of its components under any circumstances. DESMAN shall 
not be responsible for latent or hidden defects that may exist, nor shall it be inferred that all defects 
will have been either observed or recorded.  The review and/or report(s) is intended solely to identify 
the general condition of the structure/s and the necessity for repairs. DESMAN’s review and/or 
report(s) shall not constitute a detailed specification for repairs. 







 

 

 

 

 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION___________________________________________________  _ 

Owner/Applicant:  Julia Morales c/o James Jackson, Mr. Frogs 

 

Address/Parcel #:  409 West College Avenue (Tax Id # 31-3-1032-00) 

 

Petitioner’s Request:  The applicant is requesting a new Special Use Permit to expand an existing 

outdoor patio (southside of the existing tavern building) with alcohol sales and service. 

 

BACKGROUND______________________________________________________________  _ 

The subject site is currently occupied by Mr. Frogs Tavern.   

 

On January 24, 2022, Special Use Permits #17-02 and #15-05 were transferred to the applicant to allow a 

tavern to resume operations on the 1st floor of the building and the 24' x 32' (768 square foot) outdoor 

patio area on the south side of the building.  In addition, Special Use Permits #17-02 and #15-05 allowed 

the tavern to expand operations on the 2nd floor of the building.  

 

• Section 23-66(f)(4) of the Zoning Ordinance states, “Continuation of a special use permit.  Once 

approved, a special use permit shall be allowed to continue and may be transferred to any entity, 

unless specified otherwise as a condition of approval, as long as all conditions placed on the 

special use are followed.”  

 

STAFF ANALYSIS____________________________________________________________  _ 

Project Summary:  As shown on the attached development plan, the applicant proposes to expand the 

existing outdoor patio area by 456 square feet for a total area of 1,224 square feet.  The applicant proposes 

to continue with alcohol sales and service within the expanded outdoor patio area.  

 

Existing Site Conditions:  The existing tavern building (1st and 2nd floor) on the subject parcel totals 

approximately 3,120 square feet, including a 768 square foot outdoor patio.   

 

Zoning Ordinance Requirements:  The subject property has a zoning designation of CBD Central 

Business District.  The proposed outdoor patio expansion is defined as a major change to Special Use 

Permits #17-02 and #15-05; therefore, a new Special Use Permit is required.   

 

 

REPORT TO CITY PLAN COMMISSION 

Plan Commission Public Hearing Date:  April 12, 2023 

Common Council Meeting Date:  April 19, 2023 

Item:  Special Use Permit #2-23 to expand an existing outdoor patio 

with alcohol sales and service associated with a tavern (Mr. Frogs) 

located at 409 West College Avenue  

 

Case Manager:  Don Harp, Principal Planner 

Community  

and Economic 

Development 



Special Use Permit #2-23 

April 12, 2023 

Page 2 

 

The Plan Commission makes a recommendation to the Common Council who will make the final decision 

on the Special Use Permit.  A two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Common Council is required for approval.  

 

Special Use Permit Consolidation:  If approved, Special Use Permit #2-23 will replace Special Use 

Permits #17-02 and #15-05.  The following on-going conditions will continue to be in effect and will be 

included in the staff recommendation. 

 

1. The serving and consumption of alcohol is limited to the interior ground floor, second story and 

the enclosed outdoor seating area (south side of building) as identified by the submitted floor 

plan/development plan pursuant to Special Use Permit #15-05 on file in the Community and 

Economic Development Department.  Any future expansions into additional building space not 

identified by the submitted development plan, for the serving and/or consumption of alcohol, will 

require a new Special Use Permit application to be applied for and approved.  

 

2. Any expansion of a tavern with alcohol sales use requires approval of a premise description 

amendment of the existing liquor license from the Safety and Licensing Committee and Common 

Council. 

 

3. Deliveries must continue to use the rear entrance so College Avenue traffic flow is not interrupted. 

 

4. All dumpsters and/or waste containers shall be kept out of the alley way (public right-of-way). 

 

5. All Noise Ordinances shall be adhered to at all times. 

 

6. All City of Appleton and State of Wisconsin Building Codes must be met. 

 

7. The use shall conform to the standards established on Chapter 9, Article III, Alcoholic beverages, 

of the Appleton Municipal Code. 

 

Operational Information:  The plan of operation is attached to the Staff Report. 

 

Surrounding Zoning and Land Uses:  The surrounding area is under the jurisdiction of the City of 

Appleton (north, south, east, and west).  The uses are generally commercial and public institutional in 

nature. 

 

North:  CBD Central Business District.  The adjacent land uses to the north are currently a mix of 

commercial uses, including the Performing Arts Center. 

 

South:  CBD Central Business District.  The adjacent land use to the south is currently St. Joseph’s 

Church.  

 

East:  CBD Central Business District.  The adjacent land uses to the east are currently a mix of 

commercial uses, including D2 Sports Pub. 

 

West:  CBD Central Business District.  The adjacent land uses to the west are currently a mix of 

commercial uses, including Sal’s Pizza. 



Special Use Permit #2-23 

April 12, 2023 

Page 3 

 

 

Appleton Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030:  Community and Economic Development staff has reviewed 

this proposal and determined it is compatible with the Central Business District designation shown on the 

City’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030 Future Land Use Map.  Listed below are related excerpts from the 

City’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030. 

 

Goal 1 – Community Growth 

Appleton will continue to provide opportunities for residential, commercial, and industrial growth, 

including appropriate redevelopment sites within the downtown and existing neighborhoods, and 

greenfield development sites at the City's edge. 

 

Goal 8 – Economic Development 

Appleton will pursue economic development that retains and attracts talented people, brings good jobs to 

the area, and supports the vitality of its industrial areas, downtown, and neighborhood business districts. 

 

OBJECTIVE 9.4 Economic Development: 

Ensure the continued vitality of downtown and the City’s neighborhood commercial districts. 

 

Chapter 14 Downtown Plan, Initiative 4 Downtown Development and Business Retention: 

Strategy 4.8 – Support private sector efforts to redevelop and invest in downtown. 

 

Zoning Ordinance Requirements and Substantial Evidence:  When reviewing an application for a 

Special Use Permit, the City must determine if the applicant’s proposal satisfies Municipal Code 

requirements and conditions.  Pursuant to Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, the Plan 

Commission and Common Council must provide substantial evidence supporting their decision to 

approve, approve with conditions, or deny the Special Use Permit.  Substantial evidence means “facts and 

information, other than merely personal preferences or speculation, directly pertaining to the requirements 

and conditions an applicant must meet to obtain a Special Use Permit and that reasonable persons would 

accept in support of a conclusion.”  Any requirements and conditions listed for approval must be 

reasonable, and to the extent practicable, measurable. 

 

Finding of Fact:  This request was reviewed in accordance with the standards for granting a Special Use 

Permit under Section 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code:  1. proper zoning district: CBD zoning allows 

taverns as a special use permit; 2. zoning district regulations: the district regulations were reviewed 

pursuant to the attached development; 3. special regulations: stipulations 2, 3 and 4 (below) address the 

special regulations for taverns; 4. consistent with comprehensive plan and other plans: yes, see above 

analysis; 5. traffic: the proposed use is not expected to create undue traffic congestion, it is anticipated 

customers will utilize on-street and ramp parking spaces to park their cars and other multi-modal 

transportation options are available too; 6. landscaping and screening: not applicable to this use, the CBD 

District allows 100% lot coverage; 7. neighborhood compatibility: the proposed use is located near 

similar commercial uses in this area of the City; 8. impact on services: the City has existing utilities, 

services and equipment in place to serve this proposed use.  These standards were found in the 

affirmative, as long as all stipulations are satisfied.  

  

 

 



Special Use Permit #2-23 

April 12, 2023 

Page 4 

 

 

Technical Review Group (TRG) Report:  This item was discussed at the March 21, 2023 Technical 

Review Group meeting.  No negative comments were received from participating departments. 

 

RECOMMENDATION________________________________________________________  _ 

Staff recommends, based on the above, that Special Use Permit #2-23 to expand an existing outdoor patio 

with alcohol sales and service associated with a tavern (Mr. Frogs) located at 409 West College Avenue 

(Tax Id #31-3-1032-00), as shown on the attached maps, development plans and per attached plan of 

operation, along with the attached resolution, BE APPROVED to run with the land, subject to the 

following conditions: 

 

1. The applicant shall receive approval of a Liquor License and/or an Alcohol License Premise 

Amendment from the City Clerk prior to serving alcohol on the premise. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition provides notice to the applicant that a Liquor License is 

also needed prior to serving alcohol. 

 

2. The use shall conform to the standards established in Chapter 9, Article III, Alcoholic Beverages, 

of the Appleton Municipal Code. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition is one of the special regulations included in Section 23-

66(h)(6) of the Zoning Ordinance for this particular use and current Special Use Permits #17-

02 and #15-05. 

 

3. The site shall be kept free of litter and debris. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition is one of the special regulations included in Section 23-

66(h)(6) of the Zoning Ordinance for this particular use. 

 

4. All Zoning, Building, Fire, Engineering, Utility and other Municipal Codes, and all applicable 

State and Federal laws shall be complied with. 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition is one of the special regulations included in Section 23-

66(h)(6) of the Zoning Ordinance for this particular use and current Special Use Permits #17-

02 and #15-05. 

 

5. Any expansions of the special use, changes to the development plan(s), plan of operation or any 

conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use 

Permit pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Contact the Community and 

Economic Development Department to discuss any proposed changes. 

Substantial Evidence:  Standardized condition that establishes parameters for the current 

application and identifies the process for review of any future changes to the special use. 

 

 

 

 

 



Special Use Permit #2-23 

April 12, 2023 

Page 5 

 

 

6. Deliveries must continue to use the rear entrance so College Avenue traffic flow is not interrupted. 

     Substantial Evidence:  This condition applied pursuant to Special Use Permits #17-02 and 

#15-05.  

7. All dumpsters and/or waste containers shall be kept out of the alley (public right-of-way). 

Substantial Evidence:  This condition applied pursuant to Special Use Permits #17-02 and  

#15-05. 

 

 



1 | P a g e  

 

CITY OF APPLETON 

RESOLUTION FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #2-23  

TAVERN WITH OUTDOOR PATIO WITH ALCOHOL 

409 WEST COLLEGE AVENUE 

 

 

WHEREAS, James Jackson, of Mr. Frogs, has applied for a Special Use Permit to expand an existing outdoor 

patio with alcohol sales and service associated with a tavern located at 409 West College Avenue, also 

identified as Parcel Number 31-3-1032-00; and 

 

WHEREAS, the proposed outdoor patio expansion with alcohol sales and service is defined as a major change 

to Special Use Permits #17-02 and #15-05, a new Special Use Permit for a tavern with an outdoor patio with 

alcohol sales and service is required pursuant to Chapter 23 of the Municipal Code and if approved, Special Use 

Permit #2-23 will replace Special Use Permits #17-02 and #15-05; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission held a public hearing on April 12, 2023 on Special Use 

Permit #2-23, at which all those wishing to be heard were allowed to speak or present written comments and 

other materials at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission has reviewed and considered the Community and 

Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as other spoken and written 

evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for granting a Special Use Permit 

under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Plan Commission reviewed the standards for imposing conditions on the 

Special Use Permit under Section 23-66(c)(5) of the Municipal Code, and forwarded Special Use Permit #2-23 

to the City of Appleton Common Council with a   favorable conditional      or       not favorable      (CIRCLE 

ONE) recommendation; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Appleton Common Council has reviewed the report and recommendation of the City 

of Appleton Plan Commission at their meeting on April 19, 2023. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by the Common Council, 

based on Community and Economic Development Department’s staff report and recommendation, as well as 

other spoken and written evidence and testimony presented at the public hearing and Common Council meeting, 

and having considered the recommendation of the City Plan Commission, that the Common Council: 

 

1. Determines all standards listed under Sections 23-66(e)(1-8) of the Municipal Code are found in the 

affirmative     YES     or     NO      (CIRCLE ONE) 

 

2. If NO, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby denies Special Use Permit #2-23 for a tavern with an 

outdoor patio with alcohol sales and service located at 409 West College Avenue, also identified as Parcel 

Number 31-3-1032-00, based upon the following standards and determinations:  (List reason(s) why the 

Special Use Permit was denied) 

 



2 | P a g e  

 

3. If YES, the City of Appleton Common Council hereby approves Special Use Permit #2-23 for a tavern with 

an outdoor patio with alcohol sales and service located at 409 West College Avenue, also identified as 

Parcel Number 31-3-1032-00, subject to the following conditions as they are related to the purpose of the 

City of Appleton Municipal Code and based on substantial evidence: 

 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL FOR SPECIAL USE PERMIT #2-23: 

 

A. The applicant shall receive approval of a Liquor License and/or an Alcohol License Premise 

Amendment from the City Clerk prior to serving alcohol on the premise. 

 

B. The use shall conform to the standards established in Chapter 9, Article III, Alcoholic Beverages, of the 

Appleton Municipal Code. 

 

C. The site shall be kept free of litter and debris. 

 

D. All Zoning, Building, Fire, Engineering, Utility and other Municipal Codes, and all applicable State and 

Federal laws shall be complied with. 

 

E. Any expansions of the special use, changes to the development plan(s), plan of operation or any 

conditions of approval may require a major or minor amendment request to this Special Use Permit 

pursuant to Section 23-66(g) of the Zoning Ordinance.  Contact the Community and Economic 

Development Department to discuss any proposed changes.  

 

F. Deliveries must continue to use the rear entrance so College Avenue traffic flow is not interrupted. 

 

G. All dumpsters and/or waste containers shall be kept out of the alley (public right-of-way). 

 

4. The City Clerk’s Office is hereby directed to give a copy of this resolution to the owner/applicant, 

Community and Economic Development Department, Inspections Division, and any other interested party. 

 

 

Adopted this ______ day of ____________________________, 2023. 

 

 

 

        _____________________________________ 

        Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor  

ATTEST: 

 

 

_____________________________________ 

Kami Lynch, City Clerk 



5-1105-19

2-
01

39
-1

5

2-
01

39
-1

6

2-
01

39
-1

4

0-1078

2-0139-20

2-0139-22

2-0139-21

2-0139-23

2-0139-19

2-0139-18

2-0139-17

5-2226

2-0419-1

5-2226

5-2226
5-

10
74

3-
10

20

3-
10

21

3-
10

22

3-0851

3-0847

3-0849

3-1008

3-1016

3-1017

3-
10

06

3-1014

3-
10

04

3-
10

05

3-0988

3-0986

3-
09

83

3-
09

85

3-0864

3-0865

3-0866

3-0867 3-0861

3-0862

3-0855

3-0859 3-0840

2-0194-1

2-0116

3-0821

3-
08

22

3-
08

23

3-0816

3-0817

3-0818

3-0819

2-0074

5-1077

5-1076

2-0430-2

5-
10

72

5-
11

60

5-1126

2-0488-1

3-
10

28

3-
10

25

3-
10

23

3-
10

27

3-
10

29
3-

10
30

3-
10

32
3-

10
31

3-
10

33

3-1042

2-0090

2-
00

95

2-0096

2-
02

57

2-0251

2-0406
2-0405

2-0404

2-
02

50

2-0233

2-
02

38

2-0232

2-
02

42

2-
02

43

2-
02

48

2-0424

2-0430-6

5-
10

71

5-1080

5-2226-45-1075

5-1050

5-1056

5-
11

63
5-

11
62

5-1135

5-1133

5-1128
5-

10
65

5-
10

68

5-
10

59
5-

10
58

5-1078

5-1
06

6

5-1
06

7

3-
10

15

3-09903-0991

3-
08

69
3-

08
68

3-
09

99

5-1081

5-1079
5-1131

3-
10

03

2-
00

92
2-

00
92

-1

3-0680

2-
02

35

5-
10

60

0-0428

2-0428

5-
10

70

5-1075-2
5-

10
63

2-0116-1

5-
10

70
-1

20
4.

5

13
6

12
3

13
9

13
3

11
0

221

22
8

409 407

20
3

410

30
6

437

509

509

13
4

11
8

12
9

12
5

11
9

404410516 510

20
1

20
8

22
2

22
2

22
7

32
0

523

31
2

32
7

32
1

31
5

30
3

22
6

516

22
6

22
8

423601

30
3.

5
32

7.
5

517-19

32
4

23
22

21
20

19

18

17
16 15 14

51
6.

5

427 333 333

22
0

22
2

22
4

30
6.

5

500

42
5

41
5

41
3

41
1

40
9

41
7

40
3

34
3

34
5

22
6

21
8

505

301355

603

52
2

52
4

53
2

53
0

52
8

51
4

53
5

52
7

53
1

52
9

52
3

52
5

51
3

51
9 509-511 507 503

50
0

50
2

50
6

50
8

51
2

21
1

11
5

13
1

12
1

20
3

20
9

21
5

22
7

31
3

400

11
1

10
5

512
20

7

22
8.

5

21
8-

20
21

4
21

4.
5

21
0

20
2

20
4

22
1.

5

22
1

21
5

20
9

20
3.

5

338-40

31
0

30
8

34
2

34
4

12
5

11
6

315

51
8

21
4

231

221

222

300318

306

322330

60
2

60
4

60
0

315

51
6

515

W COLLEGE AV

P-I

ALLEY

W COLLEGE AV

W FRANKLIN ST

S 
ST

AT
E 

ST

W EIGHTH ST

S 
W

AL
N

U
T 

ST

N
 S

TA
TE

 S
T

N
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

 S
T

W LAWRENCE ST
N

 S
U

PE
R

IO
R

 S
T

W JOHNSTON ST

W WASHINGTON ST

S 
EL

M
 S

T

S 
SU

PE
R

IO
R

 S
T

W LAWRENCE ST

CBD

P-I

R-2

R-2

R-3

R-3

P

R-2

PD/C-2
W COLLEGE AV

W PACKARD ST

W PROSPECT AV

S 
LA

W
E

 S
T

N
 L

AW
E 

ST

W FRANKLIN ST

N
 D

R
EW

 S
T

N
 S

TA
TE

 S
T

S 
M

A
SO

N
 S

T

N
 S

TO
R

Y 
ST

W LAWRENCE ST

N
 M

E
AD

E
 S

T

N
 M

A
SO

N
 S

T
W WINNEBAGO ST

N
 O

N
EI

D
A 

S
T

N
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

 S
T

W ELSIE ST

S 
S

TA
TE

 S
T

S 
P

IE
R

C
E

 A
V

S 
S

TO
R

Y 
S

T

ALLEY
S 

M
E

M
O

R
IA

L 
D

R

N
 A

PP
LE

TO
N

 S
T E ATLANTIC ST

N
 M

O
R

R
IS

O
N

 S
T

N
 U

N
IO

N
 S

T

S O
N

EID
A ST

N BADGER AV

W EIGHTH ST

N
 C

LA
R

K 
S

T

S 
LO

C
U

S
T 

S
T

W W
ATER ST

E LINCOLN ST

S 
W

AL
N

U
T 

S
T

W OKLAHOMA ST

N
 S

U
P

ER
IO

R
 S

T

N
 D

U
R

K
EE

 S
T

S O
LD

E O
N

EID
A ST

N
 F

AI
R

 S
T

E WINNEBAGO ST
E HANCOCK ST

S 
M

E
AD

E 
S

T

S 
FA

IR
VI

E
W

 S
T

S 
D

R
EW

 S
T

S 
VU

LC
AN

 S
T

N
 P

A
R

K 
AV

ALLEYALLEY ALLEY

409 West College Ave
Mr. Frogs (Tavern)
Special Use Permit

Expand Outdoor Patio
with Alcohol Sales and Service 

Zoning Map

Subject
Area

City Plan Commission
4-12-2023

Subject Area

±
0 100 200

Feet



3-
10

28

3-
10

25

3-
10

23

3-
10

27

3-
10

29
3-

10
30

3-
10

32
3-

10
31

3-
10

33

3-1042

2-
00

95

2-
02

38

2-
00

92
2-

00
92

-1

2-
02

35

12
9

12
5

11
9

404410

423427 333

42
5

41
5

41
3

41
1

40
9

41
7

40
3

34
3

34
5

400

11
1

338-40

34
2

34
4

11
6

330

W COLLEGE AV

ALLEY

W COLLEGE AV

S 
W

AL
N

U
T 

ST

W LAWRENCE ST

N
 D

IV
IS

IO
N

 S
T

N
 W

AL
N

U
T 

ST

W JOHNSTON ST

409 West College Ave
Mr. Frogs (Tavern)
Special Use Permit

Expand Outdoor Patio with Alcohol Sales and Service 
Aerial Map

City Plan Commission
4-12-23

Subject Area

±
0 40 8020

Feet



24 feet

120 feet

Bar Area: 1st Floor 24X65 =1560 sq.ft. and 
2nd Floor 24x65 = 1560 sq.ft.

Outdoor patio area:
24x51 = 1,224 sq.ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
3/16"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UFLOOR PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE:

AutoCAD SHX Text
NORTH

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  ENTRY DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  STAIR TO UPPER NON OCCUPIED AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE USE TOILET ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINGLE USE TOILET ROOM

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW RAMP UP

AutoCAD SHX Text
+0" GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
+23-1/2"

AutoCAD SHX Text
RENOVATED EXTERIOR PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.X. PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.X. PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
E.X. PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING  STAIR TO LOWER LEVEL BASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWO DOOR CLR. BELOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAP  BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
TWO DOOR CLR. BELOW 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS WASHER

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND SINK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 DR. WELL COOLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 DR. WELL COOLER

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRINK STATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRINK STATION 

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.S. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O.S. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HAND SINK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASSES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASSES 

AutoCAD SHX Text
BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEATING

AutoCAD SHX Text
 NEW OH DOOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
GARBAGE AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
2 YARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' x 2'-9"

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUTOMATED CONTAINERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO PORTABLE BAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXIT GATE













 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572 FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

 

 

 

TO:  Parks & Recreation Committee  

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza 

 

DATE:  04-10-23 

 

RE: Action Item:  Irish Fest of the Fox Cities requests permission to hold a ticketed 

private Special Event in Jones Park on September 15-16, 2023 for Irish Fest  

 

 

Last year the Parks & Recreation Committee approved the updated Jones Park Rental Policy 

which requires permission from the Parks & Recreation Committee for any private Special 

Events in Jones Park.   

 

Irish Fest of the Fox Cities is requesting to host a Special Event in Jones Park for the third year.  

It is an Irish Musical, Dancing and Cultural Festival with an anticipated turnout of 3,000 people.  

Because they are charging attendees a fee to attend the event, the Committee will need to give 

approval. 

 

They are aware of the rules and regulations of the park and agree to abide by them.  We are also 

allowing them to extend their music until 10:00 p.m.  The Parks, Recreation & Facilities 

Management Department supports their request as their event had no problems or issues the last 

two years. 

 

Irish Fest of the Fox Cities requests permission to allow Irish Fest to be held at Jones Park on 

September 15-16, 2023. 

 

 

 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

TO:  Parks and Recreation Committee 

 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza 

 

DATE:  April 10, 2023 

 

RE: Action:  Adopt the Proposed Revised Athletic Facilities Rental and Fee Schedule 

Policy 

 

The Parks, Recreation, and Facilities Management Department has reviewed the Athletic 

Facilities Rental and Fee Schedule Policy. Reviews are completed to ensure the policy remains 

current and reflects the current needs of the users. The following changes are being proposed 

upon review. 

 

1. Green Meadows Park, adding one basketball court and removing one tennis court 

2. Pickleball Courts, adding eight courts to Telulah Park and removing one court at Green 

Meadows Park 

3. New pickleball court rental fees for tournaments at Telulah Park 

4. Increase ball diamond tournament field and concession stand rental fees. Costs for labor, 

utilities, refuse removal, and cleaning have all increased. 

5. Erb Park, adding muti-use field 

 

Our department requests approval of the updates which will go into effect May 1, 2023.  

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


1 

 

 

CITY OF APPLETON 

POLICY 

 

TITLE:  ATHLETIC FACILITIES - RENTAL AND 

FEE SCHEDULE POLICY  

                                                    

 

ISSUE DATE: June 18, 2008 

 

LAST UPDATE: June 18, 2008 

October 22, 2014, January 3, 2018, 

January 7, 2019 

 

SECTION:  Parks, Recreation 

and Facilities Management  

 

POLICY SOURCE: Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management 

Department 

 

TOTAL PAGES: 7 8 

 

Reviewed by Attorney’s Office 

Date:  December 27, 2018 April 4, 

2023 

 

Parks and Recreation Committee 

Approval Date: January 7, 2019 

 

Council Approval Date:  

 January 16, 2019 

 

I.    Purpose: 

 

The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform standards for the Parks, Recreation and Facilities 

Management Department to equitably administer the scheduling and use of City of Appleton 

athletic facilities by the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department and other 

community groups, organizations, and individuals.  This document also establishes a policy for 

administering rules and regulations, policies, fees and charges for tournaments, community events, 

and/or personal use. 

 

II.    Policy: 

 

This policy authorizes the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department to effectively 

schedule and manage City of Appleton outdoor athletic facilities, including ball diamonds, courts, 

and multi-purpose fields in City parks.  This policy also authorizes the Parks, Recreation and 

Facilities Management Department to charge fees for the use of athletic facilities within the rate 

schedule established by the Parks and Recreation Committee and City Council. To effectively 

schedule, manage, protect facilities, and promote the wise use of the athletic facilities, this policy 

authorizes the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Director and/or designee to: 

 

• Designate those athletic facilities available for use by the community. 

• Designate the types of activities allowed on the athletic facilities, including leagues 

practices, games, matches, tournaments, special events, etc. 

• Schedule the athletic facilities to allow for the effective use and maintenance of all athletic 

facilities without compromising the integrity of the facilities. 

• Limit and/or close athletic facilities for renovations, upgrades, other events/activities that 

may impact the facilities.  

• Determine “normal and ordinary use guidelines” for athletic facilities consistent with 

established standards to manage the facilities for continued and consistent community use.  

“Normal and ordinary use guidelines” may impact scheduling and availability of athletic 

facilities.  

• Cancel and/or relocate any reservation that has the potential to threaten the integrity of the 

park and/or facility due to: misrepresentation of information on the Facility Reservation 

Agreement, conditions of the facility or grounds that would potentially create an unsafe 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



2 

 

situation, and/or if use of the facility by the group/organization may result in damage to the 

facility that is beyond the normal wear and tear of facility.  

• Limit the number of weekday and weekend reservations for facilities for anyone or any 

group, organization or individuals that would dominate the use of a facility and/or restrict 

equal opportunities to reserve facilities by members of the public at large. 

• Deny any facility reservation application if the expected attendance would exceed the safe 

capacity of the facility so as to endanger public health and safety or compromise the 

condition of facilities and/or natural resources. 

• Enforce park rules, regulations, and policies. 

• Require insurance coverage with limits established by the City Risk Manager for activities 

or events that are determined to be a risk to the City. are beyond the scope of the “normal 

and ordinary use guidelines” established by the Parks, Recreation and Facilities 

Management Department. 

• Require a security deposit and/or performance bond liability insurance for activities or 

events that may impact the integrity of the facilities and require significant repairs to the 

facilities that would limit the future use of the facilities. 

 

III. Definitions: 

 

• Athletic Facilities – Ball diamonds, multi-purpose fields, tennis courts, pickleball courts, 

basketball courts, and other open space identified by the City of Appleton that are available 

for reservation. 

• Athletic Facility Preparation – Necessary maintenance of athletic facilities for games and 

organized play.  Maintenance may include, but is not limited to dragging and lining of ball 

diamonds, lining of soccer fields, watering infields, etc. 

• Category A – Local non-profit organizations that provide recreational services to the 

Appleton and Fox Cities community. 

• Category B – For-profit or private individuals, groups, and organizations. 

• Concession/Sales/Exchange of Money - The sale of food, beverage and other associated 

products or the exchange of money at an event or program that is held in a city park and/or 

special area specifically reserved for that event or program. 

• Late Reservation - Request for a reservation of city park facility and/or special area that is 

received less than five (5) business days before the reservation date. 

• Normal and Ordinary Use Guidelines of City of Appleton Parks - Is defined by 

guidelines established and published by the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management 

Department. 

• Processing Fee - Fee charged to process a refund and/or cancellation request that is 

received before the reservation date. 

• Special Event - An event or activity that meets the City of Appleton’s requirements for a 

special event activity, is held in a city park and/or special area, and exceeds the normal and 

ordinary use of the park and/or special area. 

• Tournament – Athletic event such as baseball, softball, kickball, pickleball, etc. that 

involves the rental of 2 or more ball diamonds or courts at Appleton Memorial Park that and 

includes multiple teams and games.  

 

IV. Use of Athletic Facilities: 

 

The use of athletic facilities managed/maintained by the Parks, Recreation and Facilities 

Management Department is are available to individuals, groups and organizations for exclusive use 

for practice, league play, and tournaments.  The following shall direct the use of athletic facilities: 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



3 

 

 

• All park ordinances shall apply to use of athletic facilities. 

• Any additions or modifications to the athletic facilities shall be approved in writing by the 

Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Director or designee. 

• Individuals, groups and organizations must obtain a permit from the Parks, Recreation and 

Facilities Management Director or designee for exclusive use of any athletic facility. 

• The display of any advertising, signs, etc. during exclusive use must be approved by the 

Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Director or designee. 

• Access to the athletic facilities will be limited to the times listed on the Facility Reservation 

Agreement form. 

• The overnight storage of equipment, supplies, vehicles, etc. is prohibited unless approved by 

the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Director or designee. 

• No games shall begin before 7:00 A.M. or end after 11:00 P.M. unless approved by the 

Parks and Recreation Committee. 

• The use of diamond dry or drying agent materials is prohibited on any athletic facility. 

• The use of motorized vehicles (including Utility Task Vehicles [UTVs] and All-Terrain 

Vehicles [ATVs]) shall be subject to the following regulations: 

❑ Operation of a motorized vehicle in an area other than a park road or designated 

parking area, including trails, is prohibited unless written permission is granted by 

the Department Director or his/ her designee.    

❑ The speed of a motorized vehicle shall be limited to ten (10) miles per hour.   

❑ No motorized vehicle shall be used to perform any field maintenance.   

❑ Anyone driving a motorized vehicle must possess a valid driver’s license and be at 

least 18 years of age or older.   

❑ If it is anticipated that a motorized vehicle will be used, the tournament organizer 

shall provide a certificate of insurance for the vehicle with the City named as an 

additional insured. 

 

V. Scheduling Priorities 

The Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department will schedule athletic facilities 

according to the following priorities: 

 

• All Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department programs (games, scheduled 

practices, matches, camps, instructional programs, etc.) will be the first programs scheduled at 

athletic facilities.  (i.e., youth ball diamonds in city parks will be scheduled for Parks, 

Recreation and Facilities Management Department programs before any other programs are 

scheduled). 

• Any other requests for use of athletic facilities will be reserved according to this policy.  

• The Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department will not schedule practice times 

for any private and/or not-for-profit organizations. 

 

VI. Reservations: 

  

The reservation of athletic facilities for use by the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management 

Department, Appleton Area School District, and other groups and/or organizations shall follow this 

policy.    

 

• Reservations for weekday play made by the general public or private organizations will 

include preparation of infields for play as long as an approved facility reservation form has 

been submitted along with required fees.  Infield preparations for reservations on the 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



4 

 

weekends for the general public or private organizations will be charged the established rate 

for weekend pay for Appleton Parks, Recreation & Facilities Management employees. 

• All groups, individuals, and organizations reserving athletic facilities will be charged in 

accordance with the established rate schedule on file with the Parks, Recreation and 

Facilities Management Department and/or City Clerk. Reservations that meet certain criteria 

will be required to obtain a Special Events License. 

• Full payment of the reservation fee shall be included with all other athletic facilities 

reservation requests.  Reservations are not valid until a “Facility Reservation Agreement” 

form has been signed by all parties and the required payments have been made. 

• Organizations/groups that have reserved athletic facilities at Appleton Memorial Park for 

tournaments shall have thirty (30) days after the date of the tournament to reserve the 

athletic facilities for the same weekend and/or date for the following year.  After thirty (30) 

days, the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department will make the athletic 

facilities available to other interested parties.  The reservation may be cancelled if the 

appropriate facility rental fees are not paid when submitting the athletic field reservation 

agreement. 

• The athletic facilities at Appleton Memorial Park will be held open for tournaments only for 

a period of 6 months to one year prior to the proposed date.  The athletic facilities at 

Appleton Memorial Park will be available for all events, including non-tournament events 

on a first-come, first-served basis beginning 6 months prior to the proposed date.   

• All other rReservations for athletic facilities are on a first-come, first-served basis and may 

be made no more than one (1) year in advance.  Reservations for state, regional and/or 

national tournaments and/or events that must be scheduled more than one (1) year in 

advance may submit a written request to the Parks and Recreation Committee for approval.  

• All applications for facility reservations must be made at least five (5) business days in 

advance of the reservation date. Applications not made before this time period will be 

charged an additional $20.00 for each reservation. 

• Groups and/or organizations may be required to reserve pavilions and/or special areas if the 

Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department determines the event or activity 

warrants the additional reservations to minimize impact on other facility users or enhance 

the event. 

• Tournament play at Appleton Memorial Park must be completed no later than 4:00 p.m. on 

Sundays. 

• Additional fees may be charged for additional cleaning to facility and grounds, repair of 

facility / grounds, additional chalk and/ or excessive damage to equipment and/or City of 

Appleton property. 

• This policy shall become effective January 16, 2019 May 1, 2023 and shall remain in effect 

until it is modified, changed, and/or repealed. 

 

 

 

VII. Cancellation/Refunds: 

 

A full refund of the rental fee will be made if the reservation for the athletic facility is cancelled 

more than 90 days in advance of the event.  A full refund of the rental fee for the cancellation of an 

athletic facility less than 90 days in advance of the event will be made only if the facility can be 

rented to another party for the date canceled.  Refunds are subject to a $10.00 processing fee.   

 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



5 

 

A full refund of the rental fee will be made if the reservation is cancelled by the Parks, Recreation 

and Facilities Management Department due to park closings, construction activities, etc.  These 

refunds are not subject to the $10.00 processing fee. 

 

A full refund of the rental fee for reservation of the Appleton Memorial Park Ball Diamond 

Complex for tournaments will be issued if the entire tournament is cancelled due to weather.  In the 

event the tournament user is not able to play one full day of their tournament due to weather related 

cancellations, a daily refund per field and concession stand (s) will may be issued.  If any amount of 

games are played on a day, no refunds will be issued. 

 

Refunds will not be issued for any individual athletic facility reserved on an hourly basis that is not 

used – regardless of the reason (to include: weather, cancellation of game, etc.). 

 

VIII. Athletic Facilities: 

 

The following athletic facilities are available for reservation: 

 

• Ball Diamonds  

❑ Appleton Memorial Park (AMP) – 7 diamonds. (The Miracle League 

Field is covered by a separate policy.) 

❑ Einstein Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

❑ Hoover Park – 1 youth ball diamond and 1 pony league baseball diamond 

❑ Jaycee Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

❑ Kiwanis Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

❑ Linwood Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

❑ Lions Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

❑ Telulah Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

❑ Woodland Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

 

• Basketball Courts 

❑ Colony Oaks Park – 1 court 

❑ Erb Park – 1 court 

❑ Green Meadows Park – 1 court 

❑ Highview Park – 1 court 

❑ Jaycee Park – 1 court 

❑ Kiwanis Park – 1 court 

❑ Linwood Park – 1 court 

❑ Peabody Park – 1 court 

❑ Pierce Park – 1 court 

❑ Schaefer Park – 1 court 

❑ Summit Park – 1 court 

 

• Multi-Purpose Fields 

❑ Telulah Park – 1 field 

❑ Hoover Park – 1 field 

❑ Erb Park – 1 field 

 

• Tennis Courts   

❑ Einstein Park – 2 courts 

❑ Erb Park – 4 courts 

Formatted: Strikethrough



6 

 

❑ Pierce Park – 3 courts 

❑ Linwood Park – 1 court 

❑ Summit Park – 2 courts 

❑ Green Meadows Park – 2 1 courts 

❑ Colony Oaks Park – 1 court 

❑ Highview Park – 1 court              

 

• Pickleball Courts 

❑       Einstein Park – 2 courts 

❑  Summit Park – 2 courts 

❑  Green Meadows Park – 2 1 courts 

❑  Linwood Park – 1 court 

❑  Highview Park – 1 court 

❑ Telulah Park – 8 courts 

 

IX. Fees and Charges 

The Appleton Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department will maintain the athletic 

facilities on a regular  basis.  These maintenance activities are provided by the Parks, Recreation and 

Facilities Management Department Operations Division, Monday through Friday from 6:30 A.M. to 

2:30 P.M. and include the following: 

 

• Ball Diamonds – Turf management, routine infield care, providing bases, general cleaning of 

the site, and maintenance of fencing, bleachers, benches, etc. 

• Soccer Fields – Turf management and maintenance of any fencing, bleachers, goals, and 

benches. 

• Tennis / Pickleball Courts – Maintenance of fencing, nets, lights, surfacing, lines, signage, 

etc. 

• Basketball Courts – Maintenance of fencing, nets, surfacing, lines, backboards and rims, 

signage, etc. 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Not Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Athletic Facilities - Fees & Charges 

     (Effective January 16, 2019May 1, 2023) 

 

Ball Diamond and Pickleball Court Tournament Rental Fees - Appleton Memorial Park (AMP) 

Only 

A tournament shall be defined as a single event that requires 2 or more ball diamonds or courts at 

Appleton Memorial Park that includes multiple teams and games. 

 

Tournament fees include:  Diamond or court rental, lights, field preparation at the beginning of the 

day, scoreboards with remotes, P.A. system, 1 bag of chalk per diamond / per day, manual field drags, 

rakes, batter box form, and field chalker. 

 

           Category A (non-profit)                                      Category B (for-profit/private) 

Daily Fee - $100 $115 per diamond per day     Daily Fee - $150 $165per diamond per 

day 

 

 Daily Fee - $60 per pickleball court per day  Daily Fee $110 per pickleball court per 

day 

 

Pickleball courts at Telulah Park can only be rented for tournaments 

              

 Full payment for athletic fields and courts are required at the same time the athletic field reservation 

form is submitted. 

 

Concession Stand Rental – Rental of concession stand(s) at Appleton Memorial Park includes the 

following services:  Garbage bags and minor cleaning supplies, toilet paper, paper towel, and one 

cleaning per day of restroom facilities.  Concession stand #1 also includes the use of a chest freezer, 

soda cooler, and refrigerator.  Full payment for the concession stand(s) are required at the same time 

the athletic field reservation form is submitted. 

 

Concession Stand #1 (Northeast concession stand in main building) $100.00 $115.00 per day. 

Concession Stand #2 (West restroom concession stand) $50.00 $65.00 per day. 

  

Ball Diamond Rental Fees (non-tournament)           

     Category A (non-profit)       Category B (for-profit/private)  

Ball Diamond Rental Fee   $20.00 per hour  $25.00 per hour 

AMP - Ball Diamond Lights    $15.00 per hour  $20.00 per hour  

 

Ball Diamond Preparation Fees (other than tournament rental) 

Weekday preparation without overtime………………….................No fee with paid reservation 

Preparation beyond regular hours, Saturdays, Sundays,  

 and Holidays for general public and private organizations…………Actual cost 

Formatted: Left, Indent: Left:  0"

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



8 

 

 

Multi-Purpose Fields, Tennis Courts, Basketball Courts, Pickleball Courts (non-tournament) 

 

         Category A (non-profit)      Category B (for-profit/private) 

Multi- Purpose Fields   $25.00 per hour /  $35.00 per hour  

      $250.00 per day  $300.00 per day 

   

 Courts     $5.00 per hour, per court $10.00 per hour, per court 

   $50.00 per day, per court $75.00 per day, per court 

 

Pickleball courts at Telulah Park can only be rented for tournaments 

       

Other permits that must be obtained at the Parks and Recreation Customer Service Area on the first 

floor of City Hall at least 5 working days prior to the event: 

 

Tents over 200 square feet …………………………………………$15.00 per tent, per day  

Fire Department inspection of the tent ………………….………….$25.00 per tent event 

Selling or serving concessions Exchange of money permit………………………….……..…...$25.00 

per day 

Utility locates…………………………………………….…………$50.00 per event 

Formatted: Font: Not Bold

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0"

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough

Formatted: Strikethrough



1 

 

 

CITY OF APPLETON 

POLICY 

 

TITLE:  ATHLETIC FACILITIES - RENTAL AND 

FEE SCHEDULE POLICY  

                                                    

 

ISSUE DATE: June 18, 2008 

 

LAST UPDATE: June 18, 2008 

October 22, 2014, January 3, 2018, 

January 7, 2019 

 

SECTION:  Parks, Recreation 

and Facilities Management  

 

POLICY SOURCE: Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management 

Department 

 

TOTAL PAGES:  7 

 

Reviewed by Attorney’s Office 

Date:  April 4, 2023 

 

Parks and Recreation Committee 

Approval Date:  

 

Council Approval Date:  

  

 

I.    Purpose: 

 

The purpose of this policy is to establish uniform standards for the Parks, Recreation and Facilities 

Management Department to equitably administer the scheduling and use of City of Appleton 

athletic facilities by the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department and other 

community groups, organizations, and individuals.  This document also establishes a policy for 

administering rules and regulations, policies, fees and charges for tournaments, community events, 

and/or personal use. 

 

II.    Policy: 

 

This policy authorizes the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department to effectively 

schedule and manage City of Appleton outdoor athletic facilities, including ball diamonds, courts, 

and multi-purpose fields in City parks.  This policy also authorizes the Parks, Recreation and 

Facilities Management Department to charge fees for the use of athletic facilities within the rate 

schedule established by the Parks and Recreation Committee and City Council. To effectively 

schedule, manage, protect facilities, and promote the wise use of the athletic facilities, this policy 

authorizes the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Director and/or designee to: 

 

 Designate those athletic facilities available for use by the community. 

 Designate the types of activities allowed on the athletic facilities, including leagues, games, 

matches, tournaments, special events, etc. 

 Schedule the athletic facilities to allow for the effective use and maintenance of all athletic 

facilities without compromising the integrity of the facilities. 

 Limit and/or close athletic facilities for renovations, upgrades, other events/activities that 

may impact the facilities.  

 Cancel and/or relocate any reservation that has the potential to threaten the integrity of the 

park and/or facility due to: misrepresentation of information on the Facility Reservation 

Agreement, conditions of the facility or grounds that would potentially create an unsafe 

situation, and/or if use of the facility by the group/organization may result in damage to the 

facility that is beyond the normal wear and tear of facility.  

 Limit the number of weekday and weekend reservations for facilities for any group, 

organization or individuals that would dominate the use of a facility and/or restrict equal 

opportunities to reserve facilities by members of the public at large. 



2 

 

 Deny any facility reservation application if the expected attendance would exceed the safe 

capacity of the facility so as to endanger public health and safety or compromise the 

condition of facilities and/or natural resources. 

 Enforce park rules, regulations, and policies. 

 Require insurance coverage with limits established by the City Risk Manager for activities 

or events that are determined to be a risk to the City.  

 Require a security deposit and/or liability insurance for activities or events that may impact 

the integrity of the facilities and require significant repairs to the facilities that would limit 

the future use of the facilities. 

 

III. Definitions: 

 

 Athletic Facilities – Ball diamonds, multi-purpose fields, tennis courts, pickleball courts, 

basketball courts, and other open space identified by the City of Appleton that are available 

for reservation. 

 Athletic Facility Preparation – Necessary maintenance of athletic facilities for games and 

organized play.  Maintenance may include, but is not limited to dragging and lining of ball 

diamonds, lining of soccer fields, watering infields, etc. 

 Category A – Local non-profit organizations that provide recreational services to the 

Appleton and Fox Cities community. 

 Category B – For-profit or private individuals, groups, and organizations. 

 Exchange of Money - The sale of food, beverage and other associated products or the 

exchange of money at an event or program that is held in a city park and/or special area 

specifically reserved for that event or program. 

 Late Reservation - Request for a reservation of city park facility and/or special area that is 

received less than five (5) business days before the reservation date. 

 Processing Fee - Fee charged to process a refund and/or cancellation request that is 

received before the reservation date. 

 Special Event - An event or activity that meets the City of Appleton’s requirements for a 

special event activity, is held in a city park and/or special area, and exceeds the normal and 

ordinary use of the park and/or special area. 

 Tournament – Athletic event such as baseball, softball, kickball, pickleball, etc. that 

involves the rental of 2 or more ball diamonds or courts  and includes multiple teams and 

games.  

 

IV. Use of Athletic Facilities: 

 

The use of athletic facilities managed/maintained by the Parks, Recreation and Facilities 

Management Department are available to individuals, groups, and organizations for exclusive use 

for league play and tournaments. The following shall direct the use of athletic facilities: 

 

 All park ordinances shall apply to use of athletic facilities. 

 Any additions or modifications to the athletic facilities shall be approved in writing by the 

Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Director or designee. 

 Individuals, groups, and organizations must obtain a permit from the Parks, Recreation and 

Facilities Management Director or designee for exclusive use of any athletic facility. 

 The display of any advertising, signs, etc. during exclusive use must be approved by the 

Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Director or designee. 

 Access to the athletic facilities will be limited to the times listed on the Facility Reservation 

Agreement form. 



3 

 

 The overnight storage of equipment, supplies, vehicles, etc. is prohibited unless approved by 

the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Director or designee. 

 No games shall begin before 7:00 A.M. or end after 11:00 P.M.  

 The use of diamond dry or drying agent materials is prohibited on any athletic facility. 

 The use of motorized vehicles (including Utility Task Vehicles [UTVs] and All-Terrain 

Vehicles [ATVs]) shall be subject to the following regulations: 

 Operation of a motorized vehicle in an area other than a park road or designated 

parking area, including trails, is prohibited unless written permission is granted by 

the Department Director or designee.    

 The speed of a motorized vehicle shall be limited to ten (10) miles per hour.   

 No motorized vehicle shall be used to perform any field maintenance.   

 Anyone driving a motorized vehicle must possess a valid driver’s license and be at 

least 18 years of age or older.   

 If it is anticipated that a motorized vehicle will be used, the tournament organizer 

shall provide a certificate of insurance for the vehicle with the City named as an 

additional insured. 

 

V. Scheduling Priorities 

The Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department will schedule athletic facilities 

according to the following priorities: 

 

 All Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department programs (games, scheduled 

practices, matches, camps, instructional programs, etc.) will be the first programs scheduled at 

athletic facilities.  (i.e., youth ball diamonds in city parks will be scheduled for Parks, 

Recreation and Facilities Management Department programs before any other programs are 

scheduled). 

 Any other requests for use of athletic facilities will be reserved according to this policy.  

 The Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department will not schedule practice times 

for any private and/or not-for-profit organizations. 

 

VI. Reservations: 

  

The reservation of athletic facilities for use by the Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management 

Department, Appleton Area School District, and other groups and/or organizations shall follow this 

policy.    

 

 Reservations for weekday play made by the general public or private organizations will 

include preparation of infields for play as long as an approved facility reservation form has 

been submitted along with required fees.  Infield preparations for reservations on the 

weekends for the general public or private organizations will be charged the established rate 

for weekend pay for Appleton Parks, Recreation & Facilities Management employees. 

 All groups, individuals, and organizations reserving athletic facilities will be charged in 

accordance with the established rate schedule on file with the Parks, Recreation and 

Facilities Management Department and/or City Clerk. Reservations that meet certain criteria 

will be required to obtain a Special Events License. 

 Full payment of the reservation fee shall be included with all other athletic facilities 

reservation requests.  Reservations are not valid until a “Facility Reservation Agreement” 

form has been signed by all parties and the required payments have been made. 

 Organizations/groups that have reserved athletic facilities for tournaments shall have thirty 

(30) days after the date of the tournament to reserve the athletic facilities for the same 



4 

 

weekend and/or date for the following year.  After thirty (30) days, the Parks, Recreation 

and Facilities Management Department will make the athletic facilities available to other 

interested parties.  The reservation may be cancelled if the appropriate facility rental fees are 

not paid when submitting the athletic field reservation agreement. 

 Reservations for athletic facilities are on a first-come, first-served basis and may be made no 

more than one (1) year in advance.  Reservations for state, regional and/or national 

tournaments and/or events that must be scheduled more than one (1) year in advance may 

submit a written request to the Parks and Recreation Committee for approval.  

 All applications for facility reservations must be made at least five (5) business days in 

advance of the reservation date. Applications not made before this time period will be 

charged an additional $20.00 for each reservation. 

 Groups and/or organizations may be required to reserve pavilions and/or special areas if the 

Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department determines the event or activity 

warrants the additional reservations to minimize impact on other facility users or enhance 

the event. 

 Tournament play at Appleton Memorial Park must be completed no later than 4:00 p.m. on 

Sundays. 

 Additional fees may be charged for additional cleaning to facility and grounds, repair of 

facility / grounds, additional chalk and/ or excessive damage to equipment and/or City of 

Appleton property. 

 This policy shall become effective May 1, 2023 and shall remain in effect until it is 

modified, changed, and/or repealed. 

 

 

 

VII. Cancellation/Refunds: 
 

A full refund of the rental fee will be made if the reservation for the athletic facility is cancelled 

more than 90 days in advance of the event.  A full refund of the rental fee for the cancellation of an 

athletic facility less than 90 days in advance of the event will be made only if the facility can be 

rented to another party for the date canceled.  Refunds are subject to a $10.00 processing fee.   

 

A full refund of the rental fee will be made if the reservation is cancelled by the Parks, Recreation 

and Facilities Management Department due to park closings, construction activities, etc.  These 

refunds are not subject to the $10.00 processing fee. 

 

A full refund of the rental fee for reservation of the Appleton Memorial Park Ball Diamond 

Complex for tournaments will be issued if the entire tournament is cancelled due to weather.  In the 

event the tournament user is not able to play one full day of their tournament due to weather related 

cancellations, a daily refund per field and concession stand(s) may be issued. If any amount of 

games are played on a day, no refunds will be issued. 

 

Refunds will not be issued for any individual athletic facility reserved on an hourly basis that is not 

used – regardless of the reason (to include: weather, cancellation of game, etc.). 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 

 

VIII. Athletic Facilities: 

 

The following athletic facilities are available for reservation: 

 

 Ball Diamonds  

 Appleton Memorial Park (AMP) – 7 diamonds. (The Miracle League 

Field is covered by a separate policy.) 

 Einstein Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

 Hoover Park – 1 youth ball diamond and 1 pony league baseball diamond 

 Jaycee Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

 Kiwanis Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

 Linwood Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

 Lions Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

 Telulah Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

 Woodland Park – 1 youth ball diamond 

 

 Basketball Courts 

 Colony Oaks Park – 1 court 

 Erb Park – 1 court 

 Green Meadows Park – 1 court 

 Highview Park – 1 court 

 Jaycee Park – 1 court 

 Kiwanis Park – 1 court 

 Linwood Park – 1 court 

 Peabody Park – 1 court 

 Pierce Park – 1 court 

 Schaefer Park – 1 court 

 Summit Park – 1 court 

 

 Multi-Purpose Fields 

 Telulah Park – 1 field 

 Hoover Park – 1 field 

 Erb Park – 1 field 

 

 Tennis Courts   

 Einstein Park – 2 courts 

 Erb Park – 4 courts 

 Pierce Park – 3 courts 

 Linwood Park – 1 court 

 Summit Park – 2 courts 

 Green Meadows Park – 1 court 

 Colony Oaks Park – 1 court 

 Highview Park – 1 court              

 

 Pickleball Courts 

       Einstein Park – 2 courts 

  Summit Park – 2 courts 

  Green Meadows Park – 1 court 

  Linwood Park – 1 court 

  Highview Park – 1 court 



6 

 

 Telulah Park – 8 courts 

 

 

 

IX. Fees and Charges 

The Appleton Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management Department will maintain the athletic 

facilities on a regular  basis.  These maintenance activities are provided Monday through Friday from 

6:30 A.M. to 2:30 P.M. and include the following: 

 

 Ball Diamonds – Turf management, routine infield care, providing bases, general cleaning of 

the site, and maintenance of fencing, bleachers, benches, etc. 

 Soccer Fields – Turf management and maintenance of any fencing, bleachers, goals, and 

benches. 

 Tennis / Pickleball Courts – Maintenance of fencing, nets, lights, surfacing, lines, signage, 

etc. 

 Basketball Courts – Maintenance of fencing, nets, surfacing, lines, backboards and rims, 

signage, etc. 

   

 

Athletic Facilities - Fees & Charges 

     (Effective May 1, 2023) 

 

Ball Diamond and Pickleball Court Tournament Rental Fees  

A tournament shall be defined as a single event that requires 2 or more ball diamonds or courts that 

includes multiple teams and games. 

 

Tournament fees include:  Diamond or court rental, lights, field preparation at the beginning of the 

day, scoreboards with remotes, P.A. system, 1 bag of chalk per diamond / per day, manual field drags, 

rakes, batter box form, and field chalker. 

 

         Category A (non-profit)                                 Category B (for-profit/private) 

Daily Fee - $115 per diamond per day     Daily Fee - $165 per diamond per day 

 

Daily Fee - $60 per pickleball court per day Daily Fee $110 per pickleball court per day 

 

Pickleball courts at Telulah Park can only be rented for tournaments 

              

 Full payment for athletic fields and courts are required at the same time the athletic field reservation 

form is submitted. 

 

Concession Stand Rental – Rental of concession stand(s) at Appleton Memorial Park includes the 

following services:  Garbage bags and minor cleaning supplies, toilet paper, paper towel, and one 

cleaning per day of restroom facilities.  Concession stand #1 also includes the use of a chest freezer, 

soda cooler, and refrigerator.  Full payment for the concession stand(s) are required at the same time 

the athletic field reservation form is submitted. 

 

Concession Stand #1 (Northeast concession stand in main building) $115.00 per day. 

Concession Stand #2 (West restroom concession stand) $65.00 per day. 

  

 



7 

 

Ball Diamond Rental Fees (non-tournament)           

     Category A (non-profit)       Category B (for-profit/private)  

Ball Diamond Rental Fee   $20.00 per hour  $25.00 per hour 

AMP - Ball Diamond Lights    $15.00 per hour  $20.00 per hour  

 

Ball Diamond Preparation Fees (other than tournament rental) 
Weekday preparation without overtime………………….................No fee with paid reservation 

Preparation beyond regular hours, Saturdays, Sundays,  

 and Holidays for general public and private organizations…………Actual cost 

 

Multi-Purpose Fields, Tennis Courts, Basketball Courts, Pickleball Courts(non-tournament) 

 

         Category A (non-profit)      Category B (for-profit/private) 
Multi- Purpose Fields   $25.00 per hour /  $35.00 per hour  

      $250.00 per day  $300.00 per day 

   

 Courts     $5.00 per hour, per court $10.00 per hour, per court 

   $50.00 per day, per court $75.00 per day, per court 

 

Pickleball courts at Telulah Park can only be rented for tournaments 

       

Other permits that must be obtained at the Parks and Recreation Customer Service Area on the first 

floor of City Hall at least 5 working days prior to the event: 

 

Tents over 200 square feet …………………………………………$15.00 per tent, per day  

Fire Department inspection  ………………….…………………….$25.00 per event 

Exchange of money permit………………………….……..….........$25.00 per day 

Utility locates…………………………………………….…………$50.00 per event 



 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 
TO:  Finance Committee 

 

FROM:  Dean R. Gazza 

 

DATE:  4/10/2023 

 

RE: Action: Approve the Wastewater Treatment Plant’s A&S Buildings Roof Repairs Project 

Engineering Services Amendment #1, increasing Specialty Engineering Group, LLC’s 

total contract amount by $39,600 from $18,500 to $58,100 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

The Appleton Wastewater Treatment Plant’s A-Building and S-Building were both constructed in the 

mid-1970’s and were upgraded in the mid-1990’s. Both buildings have similar construction and the same 

roof design. The current metal roofs on both buildings are 30 years old, leaking in several spots, and 

repairs are needed.  

 

The 2023 Capital Improvement Plan includes $375,000 for the 2023 AWWTP Roofing Project. At the 

beginning of the project, design contract 13-23 was executed with Specialty Engineering Group LLC to 

complete the engineering services needed for the A&S Buildings Roof Repairs Project. During the design 

process, we removed some test sections of the roof to inspect the extent of water damage and have the 

engineer make a determination if there was any damage to the building’s structural members. After the 

engineer’s inspection, it was determined that the entire roof needs replacement, the structural framing for 

the overhang/soffit needs replacement, and the building envelope between the soffit overhang and the 

walls needs to be repaired and sealed with a thermal/vapor barrier. After reviewing the report, it was 

determined that the needed repairs were not feasible with the current allocated budget and the project will 

have to be re-allocated in the 2024 Capital Improvement Program.    

 

This request is to increase Specialty Engineering Group, LLC’s contract amount to accommodate the 

design modifications that are needed after the engineer’s investigation. The cost for the added engineering 

work is necessary to engineer the remediation for the current building deficiencies. The additional efforts 

needed are reflected in the additional $39,600 that is being requested. We will work on completing 

design, specifications, and creating bidding documents during 2023 and bid out the construction in 2024.  

  

The cost of additional engineering services outlined as part of the Specialty Engineering Group, LLC’s 

Contract Amendment #1 totals $39,600.  This amendment would result in the contract amount increasing 

from $18,500 to $58,100.   

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


 

 
 

“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 

PARKS, RECREATION & FACILITIES 

MANAGEMENT 

Dean R. Gazza, Director 

1819 East Witzke Boulevard 

Appleton, Wisconsin 54911-8401 

(920) 832-5572  FAX (920) 993-3103 

Email - dean.gazza@appleton.org 

 

TO:  Finance Committee 
 

FROM: Dean R. Gazza 
 

DATE:  4/10/2023 
 

RE: Action:  Award the City of Appleton’s “2023 AWWTP A-Building Renovation 

Project” contract to RJM Construction, LLC. in the amount of $262,328 with a 

contingency of $36,000 for a project total not to exceed $298,328.   

 

The 2023 Capital Improvement Plan includes $275,000 to renovate A-Building office area and 

$100,000 to remediate the asbestos in the A-Building. Of that amount, $18,315 has been utilized 

for design, leaving a construction balance of $356,685. The project will include replacing the 

ceiling, lighting, and painting in A-Building. The project will also include insulating known areas 

of infiltration and asbestos remediation. The asbestos remediation work was added to the A-

Building renovation project because the work flowed and fit in seamlessly with the renovation 

work. By combining the projects, we also achieved economy of scale in bidding and design to save 

on the overall cost.  

 

The bids were received as follows: 

 

RJM Construction, LLC. (low bid)  $262,328 

 

Although only one bid was received, the bid was below the engineer’s cost estimate. 

 

Our consulting engineer has written the City of Appleton a formal letter of recommendation to 

award the contract to RJM Construction, LLC. The Parks, Recreation, and Facilities Management 

Department has also reviewed the bids and is in agreement with the engineer’s recommendation. 

Therefore, we recommend awarding the contract to RJM Construction, LLC. in the amount of 

$262,328 plus a contingency of $36,000 only to be utilized as needed. 

 

Please contact me at 832-5572 or at dean.gazza@appleton.org with any questions. 

mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org
mailto:dean.gazza@appleton.org


TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

Unit J-23 Mini Storm Sewer Construction

Be awarded to:  

Name:  M & E Construction, LLC

Address:  N3748 Uni Drive

Freedom, WI 54130

In the amount of :

With a % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:  

Committee Date:

Council Date:

$200,000.00

$200,000.00

04/10/23

04/19/23

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N

Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$200,000.00

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

**  OR  **

4/3/2023

J:\ENGINEERING\3MANAGEMENT\Buetow R\Projects\2023\Award Forms\Contract Award Form - Unit J-23.xlsx



Bid Tabulation

J-23 Mini Storm Sewer Construction

04/03/2023 01:45 PM CDT

Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total

1 Furnish & Install 6" Storm Sewer 3,250 lin.ft. $35.00 $113,750.00 $45.00 $146,250.00 $46.00 $149,500.00

2 Furnish & Install 6" Storm Lateral 100 lin.ft. $75.00 $7,500.00 $40.00 $4,000.00 $50.00 $5,000.00

3 Furnish & Install 4" Storm Riser 560 lin.ft. $40.00 $22,400.00 $35.00 $19,600.00 $75.00 $42,000.00

4 Furnish & Install 6" Storm Riser 310 lin.ft. $45.00 $13,950.00 $40.00 $12,400.00 $80.00 $24,800.00

5 Connect Sump Pump 10 each $500.00 $5,000.00 $100.00 $1,000.00 $100.00 $1,000.00

6 Furnish & Install Auger Section 900 lin.ft. $35.00 $31,500.00 $45.00 $40,500.00 $0.01 $9.00

7 Furnish & Construct PVC Yard Drain (Special Provisions 5.04.2) 3 each $1,000.00 $3,000.00 $750.00 $2,250.00 $1,100.00 $3,300.00

8 Furnish & Construct Concrete Yard Drain (Special Provisions 5.04.1) 1 each $2,000.00 $2,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00

Total Bid: $199,100.00 $227,000.00 $228,109.00

Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total

1 Furnish & Install 6" Storm Sewer 3,250 lin.ft. $44.00 $143,000.00 $52.00 $169,000.00 $62.95 $204,587.50

2 Furnish & Install 6" Storm Lateral 100 lin.ft. $40.00 $4,000.00 $54.50 $5,450.00 $65.60 $6,560.00

3 Furnish & Install 4" Storm Riser 560 lin.ft. $40.00 $22,400.00 $63.50 $35,560.00 $66.65 $37,324.00

4 Furnish & Install 6" Storm Riser 310 lin.ft. $40.00 $12,400.00 $61.50 $19,065.00 $64.50 $19,995.00

5 Connect Sump Pump 10 each $125.00 $1,250.00 $263.00 $2,630.00 $500.00 $5,000.00

6 Furnish & Install Auger Section 900 lin.ft. $52.00 $46,800.00 $58.50 $52,650.00 $114.65 $103,185.00

7 Furnish & Construct PVC Yard Drain (Special Provisions 5.04.2) 3 each $1,500.00 $4,500.00 $1,991.00 $5,973.00 $1,650.00 $4,950.00

8 Furnish & Construct Concrete Yard Drain (Special Provisions 5.04.1) 1 each $1,950.00 $1,950.00 $2,469.00 $2,469.00 $1,950.00 $1,950.00

Total Bid: $236,300.00 $292,797.00 $383,551.50

Bid            

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

Scott Lamers Costuction LLC

Essential Sewer and Water Wood Sewer & Excavating Highway Landscapers, Inc.

Bid            

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

M & E Construction LLC Alfson Excavating LLC



TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

Be awarded to:  

Name:  

Address:  

In the amount of :

With a 5.0 % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:  

Committee Date:

Council Date:

Green Bay, WI 54311

Unit X-23 Watermain Reconstruction

04/19/23

$1,146,300.00

$1,100,000.00

04/11/23

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N

Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$1,044,444.44

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

**  OR  **

$52,222.22

$1,096,666.66

Kruczek Construction Inc.

3636 Kewaunee Road

4/3/2023

J:\ENGINEERING\3MANAGEMENT\Buetow R\Projects\2023\Award Forms\Contract Award Form - Unit X-23 (Rebid).xlsx



Bid Tabulation
X-23 Water Main Reconstruction (Rebid)
04/03/2023 01:45 PM CDT

Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total

1 12" Water Main 900 lin. ft. $146.00 $131,400.00 $188.00 $169,200.00 $235.00 $211,500.00

2 8" Water Main 3,050 lin. ft. $114.50 $349,225.00 $164.00 $500,200.00 $185.00 $564,250.00

3 6" Hydrant Lead 35 lin. ft. $138.00 $4,830.00 $113.00 $3,955.00 $100.00 $3,500.00

4 Hydrant 5 each $6,300.00 $31,500.00 $6,400.00 $32,000.00 $5,775.00 $28,875.00

5 12" Gate Valve 6 each $5,400.00 $32,400.00 $5,265.00 $31,590.00 $4,800.00 $28,800.00

6 8" Gate Valve 12 each $3,000.00 $36,000.00 $2,980.00 $35,760.00 $2,750.00 $33,000.00

7 6" Gate Valve 7 each $2,100.00 $14,700.00 $2,105.00 $14,735.00 $1,975.00 $13,825.00

8 4" Gate Valve 1 each $1,750.00 $1,750.00 $1,760.00 $1,760.00 $1,625.00 $1,625.00

9 12" Bend 2 each $911.00 $1,822.00 $1,080.00 $2,160.00 $900.00 $1,800.00

10 8" Bend 21 each $460.00 $9,660.00 $595.00 $12,495.00 $490.00 $10,290.00

11 6" Bend 4 each $335.00 $1,340.00 $430.00 $1,720.00 $370.00 $1,480.00

12 4" Bend 2 each $230.00 $460.00 $335.00 $670.00 $290.00 $580.00

13 12"x8" Reducer 3 each $600.00 $1,800.00 $680.00 $2,040.00 $615.00 $1,845.00

14 8"x6" Reducer 1 each $365.00 $365.00 $460.00 $460.00 $415.00 $415.00

15 16"x12" Cross 1 each $2,888.00 $2,888.00 $2,915.00 $2,915.00 $2,850.00 $2,850.00

16 8"x8" Cross 1 each $888.00 $888.00 $1,060.00 $1,060.00 $995.00 $995.00

17 12"x12" Tee 2 each $1,460.00 $2,920.00 $1,475.00 $2,950.00 $1,475.00 $2,950.00

18 12"x8" Tee 1 each $1,180.00 $1,180.00 $1,215.00 $1,215.00 $1,215.00 $1,215.00

19 12"x6" Tee 2 each $1,032.00 $2,064.00 $1,050.00 $2,100.00 $1,035.00 $2,070.00

20 8"x6" Tee 5 each $650.00 $3,250.00 $700.00 $3,500.00 $725.00 $3,625.00

21 8"x4" Tee 1 each $600.00 $600.00 $650.00 $650.00 $620.00 $620.00

22 6" Service 19 lin. ft. $230.00 $4,370.00 $204.00 $3,876.00 $310.00 $5,890.00

23 4" Service 8 lin. ft. $250.00 $2,000.00 $341.00 $2,728.00 $385.00 $3,080.00

24 1.5" Service 20 lin. ft. $95.00 $1,900.00 $188.00 $3,760.00 $215.00 $4,300.00

25 1" Service 550 lin. ft. $111.00 $61,050.00 $126.00 $69,300.00 $180.00 $99,000.00

26 Service Connection 64 each $438.00 $28,032.00 $450.00 $28,800.00 $500.00 $32,000.00

27 Curb Stop 45 each $225.00 $10,125.00 $325.00 $14,625.00 $275.00 $12,375.00

28 Curb Box 75 each $450.00 $33,750.00 $330.00 $24,750.00 $700.00 $52,500.00

29 MJ Cap/Plug 6 each $210.00 $1,260.00 $350.00 $2,100.00 $550.00 $3,300.00

30 Cut/Cap Watermain 20 each $900.00 $18,000.00 $350.00 $7,000.00 $1,000.00 $20,000.00

31 Type "D-M" Inlet Protection 36 each $117.00 $4,212.00 $125.00 $4,500.00 $105.00 $3,780.00

32 Type "C" Inlet 4 each $2,800.00 $11,200.00 $3,710.00 $14,840.00 $3,650.00 $14,600.00

33 10" Inlet Lead 20 lin. ft $124.00 $2,480.00 $118.00 $2,360.00 $190.00 $3,800.00

34 7" Concrete Ped. Ramp 450 sq. ft. $11.00 $4,950.00 $10.90 $4,905.00 $10.00 $4,500.00

35 7" Concrete Apron 300 sq. ft. $11.00 $3,300.00 $10.90 $3,270.00 $10.00 $3,000.00

36 5" Concrete Apron 4,650 sq. ft. $9.70 $45,105.00 $9.90 $46,035.00 $9.00 $41,850.00

37 4" Concrete Sidewalk 775 sq. ft. $9.20 $7,130.00 $9.30 $7,207.50 $8.50 $6,587.50

38 8" Plain Concrete Pavement 925 sq. yd. $105.00 $97,125.00 $101.40 $93,795.00 $96.00 $88,800.00

39 7" Plain Concrete Pavement 250 sq. yd. $100.00 $25,000.00 $96.10 $24,025.00 $91.00 $22,750.00

40 Truncated Dome 64 sq. ft. $42.00 $2,688.00 $47.50 $3,040.00 $47.00 $3,008.00

41 Temp. Traffic Control 1 l.s. $47,223.94 $47,223.94 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 $47,000.00 $47,000.00

42 Flowable Fill 25 cu. yd. $100.00 $2,500.00 $95.00 $2,375.00 $125.00 $3,125.00

43 Extra Stone Bedding 150 cu. yd. $0.01 $1.50 $30.00 $4,500.00 $30.00 $4,500.00

Total Bid: $1,044,444.44 $1,205,926.50 $1,395,855.50

David Tenor CorporationBid            

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

Kruczek Construction Inc. Dorner Inc.



100 North Appleton Street 

Appleton, WI  54911-4799

www.appleton.org

City of Appleton

Meeting Minutes - Final

CEA Review Committee

3:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th FloorMonday, March 20, 2023

Call meeting to order1.

Ohman, Fenton, Doran and Public Works Director BlockPresent: 4 - 

Roll call of membership2.

Alder Doran was excused from the meeting. Deputy Finance Director Katie Demeny 

acted as a substitute for Finance Director Ohman.

Ohman, Fenton and Public Works Director BlockPresent: 3 - 

DoranExcused: 1 - 

Approval of minutes from previous meeting3.

23-0272 Minutes from July 11, 2022

Minutes from July 11, 2022.pdfAttachments:

Public Works Director Block moved, seconded by Demeny, that the Minutes be 

recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Public Works Director Block and Demeny3 - 

Absent: Doran1 - 

Public Hearings/Appearances4.

Action Items5.

23-0264 Request to upgrade Facilities truck #503 to a crew cab pickup truck with 

four-wheel drive when it’s replaced in 2024

Facilities Upgrade request to unit #503.pdfAttachments:

Public Works Director Block moved, seconded by Demeny, that the Report 

Action Item be recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Public Works Director Block and Demeny3 - 

Absent: Doran1 - 

Page 1City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22448
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=24d38b39-672e-43ad-b5a7-7935c4dee7d1.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22440
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=24307240-e35c-4c6d-8e11-caae5659c5b3.pdf


March 20, 2023CEA Review Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

23-0265 Request to keep Dodge Durango #803 until the replacement for van 

#807 arrives in 2024

Hold unit 803 in AFD.pdfAttachments:

Public Works Director Block moved, seconded by Demeny, that the Report 

Action Item be recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Public Works Director Block and Demeny3 - 

Absent: Doran1 - 

23-0266 Request to add Salsco HP Roller to Reid Golf Course CEA Equipment 

fleet in 2024

Addition to CEA Fleet Salsco Roller.pdfAttachments:

Public Works Director Block moved, seconded by Demeny, that the Report 

Action Item be recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Public Works Director Block and Demeny3 - 

Absent: Doran1 - 

23-0267 Request to add second use sedan to Health Department fleet in 2023

Health addtion to the Fleet 2023.pdfAttachments:

Public Works Director Block moved, seconded by Demeny, that the Report 

Action Item be recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Public Works Director Block and Demeny3 - 

Nay: Doran1 - 

23-0268 Request to keep tractor #593 as a spare in the Stormwater fleet when it’s 

replaced in 2024

Tractor #593 to REP Fleet.pdfAttachments:

Public Works Director Block moved, seconded by Demeny, that the Report 

Action Item be recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Public Works Director Block and Demeny3 - 

Absent: Doran1 - 

Page 2City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22441
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=622d8adf-6aca-445c-a69d-ed70222440fa.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22442
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=2aa66d80-8c2d-45cb-9d54-15cd509e9a04.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22443
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fe300d2a-8c4e-4adf-8ad0-fed4619210d9.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22444
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=f830f386-21e6-4781-bc8d-7d80501174c2.pdf


March 20, 2023CEA Review Committee Meeting Minutes - Final

23-0269 Approve 2023 CEA seasonal vehicle requests

2023 Seasonal Use Vehicle Request.pdfAttachments:

Public Works Director Block moved, seconded by Demeny, that the Report 

Action Item be recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the 

following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Public Works Director Block and Demeny3 - 

Absent: Doran1 - 

Information Items6.

23-0270 2023 Equipment Purchase Log

2023 Purchase Log.pdfAttachments:

23-0271 Proposed 2024 Equipment Replacements

2024 Equipment Replacement.pdfAttachments:

Adjournment7.

Public Works Director Block moved, seconded by Demeny, that the  be 

adjourned. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: Fenton, Public Works Director Block and Demeny3 - 

Absent: Doran1 - 

Page 3City of Appleton

http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22445
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=8d5b6244-4611-4c09-9d78-a0d5170c8adc.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22446
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=dc00e5ea-18a7-47ad-9531-52c2c053e72b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=22447
https://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=0bb39b3d-ba0e-4767-8e02-247e593b8355.pdf


TO:  Finance Committee

 Municipal Services Committee

 Utilities Committee

The Department of Public Works recommends that the following described work:

Unit F-23 Sanitary & Storm Sewer Cleaning and Televising

Be awarded to:  

Name:  Green Bay Pipe & TV, LLC

Address:  1100 Columbia Avenue

Green Bay, WI 54303

In the amount of :

With a % contingency of :

For a project total not to exceed :

In an amount Not To Exceed :

Budget:

Estimate:  

Committee Date:

Council Date:

$266,500.00

$266,500.00

04/11/23

04/19/23

C I T Y   O F   A P P L E T O N

Department of Public Works

MEMORANDUM

$266,500.00

SUBJECT: Award of Contract

**  OR  **

4/4/2023

J:\ENGINEERING\3MANAGEMENT\Buetow R\Projects\2023\Award Forms\Contract Award Form - Unit F-23.xlsx



Bid Tabulation

F-23 Sanitary & Storm Sewer Cleaning and Televising

04/03/2023 01:45 PM CDT

Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total Unit Price Item Total

1 Sanitary Sewer Cleaning 190,000 lin.ft. $0.40 $76,000.00 $0.48 $91,200.00 $0.75 $142,500.00

2 Sanitary Sewer Televising 190,000 lin.ft. $0.39 $74,100.00 $0.44 $83,600.00 $0.65 $123,500.00

3 Storm Sewer Cleaning 120,000 lin.ft. $0.40 $48,000.00 $0.48 $57,600.00 $0.75 $90,000.00

4 Storm Sewer Televising 120,000 lin.ft. $0.40 $48,000.00 $0.44 $52,800.00 $0.65 $78,000.00

5 6" Sanitary or Storm Sewer Cleaning 1,000 lin.ft. $0.40 $400.00 $0.48 $480.00 $0.55 $550.00

6 6" Sanitary or Storm Sewer Televising 1,000 lin.ft. $0.40 $400.00 $0.44 $440.00 $0.55 $550.00

7 Lateral Televising (Sanitary or Storm) 150 each $135.00 $20,250.00 $115.00 $17,250.00 $145.00 $21,750.00

8 Stormceptor Cleaning & Inspection 1 each $1,900.00 $1,900.00 $1,600.00 $1,600.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00

Total Bid: $269,050.00 $304,970.00 $458,850.00

Great Lakes TV Seal, Inc.Bid            

Item
Item Description Quantity Unit

Green Bay Pipe & TV, LLC Northern Pipe, Inc.



 
 

 
 

 
TO: Human Resources/IT Committee 
  
FROM: Kara Homan, AICP, Director of Community & Economic Development 
 Danielle Block, PE, Director of Public Works  
 
DATE: March 31, 2023 

RE: Proposed Table of Organization Changes – DPW and CED 

 
Background & Overview: 
The Department of Public Works (DPW) and the Community & Economic Development 
(CED) Department have undergone significant leadership transitions, most recently in 
CED with the promotion of David Kress to Deputy Director; and in DPW with the 
promotion of Pete Neuberger, PE to Deputy Director/City Engineer, pending the 
retirement of Ross Buetow, PE in early April.  DPW and CED leadership felt it prudent to 
evaluate organizational structures within and between our departments with the following 
goals: alignment of related functional areas; enhanced customer experience; balancing 
of workload and supervisory oversight; and improved collaboration and coordination 
within and between departments.  With this in mind, the following is being proposed (see 
attached proposed Tables of Organization): 
 
Realignment of Principal Planners within CED.  The three principal planners reporting 
structure will shift from the Director of CED to the Deputy Director.  This will create a 
division focused on planning and development, and allow for better integration of policy 
and programming between the functional areas of long-range planning, GIS, community 
development, and economic development.  
 
Inspections Division moves from DPW to CED.  The Inspections Division reporting 
structure will be realigned from the Deputy Director of Public Works/City Engineer table 
of organization, to reporting directly to the Director of Community & Economic 
Development.  This will allow for close integration with the short-range planning function 
and enhanced coordination and workflows through the life-cycle of development projects 
– from concept; planning; approval, permitting, inspection, and enforcement.  This will 
still require significant coordination with DPW/Engineering, Health, and Fire, but will 
centralize one department (CED) as the coordinating/facilitating entity for all things 
related to private development / real property. 

 
This organizational structure (aligning inspections/permitting with planning/development) 
is one that is used by mid-sized communities throughout the Fox Valley (e.g. Neenah, 

M E M O R A N D U M 

 

 
“…meeting community needs…enhancing quality of life.” 



- 2 - 

Menasha, Kaukauna, DePere, Green Bay, Oshkosh, Fond du Lac) and throughout the 
State (e.g. Eau Claire, Waukesha, Stevens Point, Marshfield, Sun Prairie, among 
others). 
 
Fiscal Impact:  This proposal is budget NEUTRAL. 
 

 
Staff Recommendation:  
DPW and CED Directors recommend approval of the proposed reorganization of our 
respective tables of organization. 
 
Attachments: DPW & CED Proposed Organizational Charts 

 
 



DRAFT 3/27/2023

1 - Community & Economic 
Development Director

 

1 - Community & Economic 
Development Director

 

1.0 - Deputy Director Community 
Development

 

1.0 - Deputy Director Community 
Development

 

1.0 - Housing Coordinator
 

1.0 - Housing Coordinator
 

1.0 - Community Development 
Specialist 

1.0 - Community Development 
Specialist 

3.0 - GIS Specialist
 

3.0 - GIS Specialist
 

2.0 - Property Assessor II
 

2.0 - Property Assessor II
 

1.0 - Personal Property 
Assessment Technician

 

1.0 - Personal Property 
Assessment Technician

 

.70 - Real Estate 
Assessment Technician

 

.70 - Real Estate 
Assessment Technician

 

1.0 - Economic Development 
Specialist

 

1.0 - Economic Development 
Specialist

 

1. 0 - City 
Assessor

 

1. 0 - City 
Assessor

 

1.0 Inspections Supervisor
 

1.0 Inspections Supervisor
 

1.0 – Administrative Assistant
 

1.0 – Administrative Assistant
 

1.0 – Property Assessor III
 

1.0 – Property Assessor III
 

1.0 - Coordinated Entry Specialist
 

1.0 - Coordinated Entry Specialist
 

3.0 - Prinicpal Planners
 

3.0 - Prinicpal Planners
 

7.0 Inspector
 

7.0 Inspector
 

1.0 Erosion Control Inspector
 

1.0 Erosion Control Inspector
 



Approved 8-2-17

1.0 - DIRECTOR OF 
PUBLIC WORKS

 

1.0 - DIRECTOR OF 
PUBLIC WORKS

 

1.0 - Deputy 
Director 

Operations
 

1.0 - Deputy 
Director 

Operations
 

1.0 - Deputy Director/
City Engineer

 

1.0 - Deputy Director/
City Engineer

 

1.0 - Managerial 
Accounting Coordinator

 

1.0 - Managerial 
Accounting Coordinator

 



DRAFT 3/27/2023

1.0 - Deputy Director/City Engineer 1.0 - Deputy Director/City Engineer 

1.0 - Assistant City 
Engineer 

1.0 - Assistant City 
Engineer 

1.0 - Traffic 
Engineer 

1.0 - Traffic 
Engineer 

1.0 – Operations 
Foreman   

1.0 – Operations 
Foreman   

7.0 - Professional 
Engineer/Civil 

Engineer 

7.0 - Professional 
Engineer/Civil 

Engineer 

1.0 - City 
Surveyor 
1.0 - City 
Surveyor 

1.0 - Assessment 
Technician/Lead Clerical 

1.0 - Assessment 
Technician/Lead Clerical 

1.0 - 
Professional 

Engineer - Traffic

1.0 - 
Professional 

Engineer - Traffic

2.0 - Electrician 2.0 - Electrician 

2.0 - Operator II - 
Sign 

2.0 - Operator II - 
Sign 

14.0 – Engineering 
Technicians

2 – Utility Locator 
@.67 fte

14.0 – Engineering 
Technicians

2 – Utility Locator 
@.67 fte

1.0 - Parking 
Utility Manager 
1.0 - Parking 

Utility Manager 

4.0 – Operator I-Parking
 

4.0 – Operator I-Parking
 

1.0 - Parking Ramp Attendant 1.0 - Parking Ramp Attendant 

1.0 - Plans & 
Records 
Specialist 

1.0 - Plans & 
Records 
Specialist 

1.0 – Horticulturist-
Conservation Technician 

1.0 – Horticulturist-
Conservation Technician 

1.0 – Lead 
Electrician

 

1.0 – Lead 
Electrician

 

1.0  Parking Enforcement Person 
1.0 – Parking Enforcement/Attendant

 

1.0  Parking Enforcement Person 
1.0 – Parking Enforcement/Attendant

 

1.0 – Operation Crew Leader - Parking
 

1.0 – Operation Crew Leader - Parking
 

3.0 – Customer Service 
Specialist 

 

3.0 – Customer Service 
Specialist 

 



Final 7/24/19

1.0 - Office Manager  1.0 - Office Manager  

10.0 - Master 
Mechanic 

10.0 - Master 
Mechanic 

1.0 -Lead Mechanic
 

1.0 -Lead Mechanic
 

1.5 - Purchasing 
Clerk

 

1.5 - Purchasing 
Clerk

 

2.0 - Inventory 
Control Clerk

 

2.0 - Inventory 
Control Clerk

 

1.0 - DPW Deputy Director Operations
 

1.0 - DPW Deputy Director Operations
 

6 - Operations 
Foreman 

6 - Operations 
Foreman 

Operations 
Pool

 

Operations 
Pool

 

CEA
 

CEA
 

26.0 - Operator II
(water, street, forestry, 

sewer)

26.0 - Operator II
(water, street, forestry, 

sewer)

32.0 – Operator I 
(sweepers, operators, 

automated sideloaders)

32.0 – Operator I 
(sweepers, operators, 

automated sideloaders)

Labor Pool
 1.5 - Operator

Labor Pool
 1.5 - Operator

.5 - Serviceperson  .5 - Serviceperson  

3.0 - Administrative 
Support Specialist

 

3.0 - Administrative 
Support Specialist

 

Forestry
 

Forestry
 

7.0 - Arborist
 

7.0 - Arborist
 

1.0 – Street Lead
1.0 – PM Lead

1.0 – Street Lead
1.0 – PM Lead


	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CC Minutes 4-5-23
	0002_1_AHA Appt Memo
	0003_1_2-R-23 Resolution to Eliminate No Mow May (1)
	0003_2_DPW No Mow May Memo (4-12-23)
	0004_1_Legendairy Occupancy Permit
	Sandwich Board Permit Application (LegendairyCnC).pdf
	101 E College Ave - Occupance Table Sketch.pdf
	Legendairy City of Appleton - Additional Insured.pdf

	0005_1_Complete Street Ped Crossing Study Contract Award
	DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS
	Engineering Division – Traffic Section
	2625 E. Glendale Avenue



	0006_1_Award of Contract - Desman 2023 Parking Ramp Maintenance Design Services
	PHASE II TASKS - Construction Documents $21,600.00
	PHASE III TASKS - Contract Negotiations $2,880.00
	PHASE IV TASKS - Construction Observation & Contract Administration $25,200.00*
	Total DESMAN Professional Fees for the TASKS II, III & IV $49,680.00
	QUALIFICATIONS TO THE SCOPE OF SERVICES
	The following qualifications to the SCOPE OF SERVICES apply:
	The engagement of DESMAN, Inc. (“DESMAN”) by the City of Appleton (“Client”) is under the following terms and conditions, as applicable, and is an integral part of the Agreement between Client and DESMAN.

	0007_1_Mr Frogs SL
	0008_1_StaffReport_Mr.Frogs_409WCollegeAve_SUP_For4-12-23
	Sheets and Views
	Model


	0009_1_Irish Fest Jones Park Special Event
	0010_1_Athletic Field Policy Memo
	0010_2_2023 Athletic Facilities Policy - REDLINE
	0010_3_2023 Athletic Facilities Policy - FINAL
	0012_1_2023 AWWTP Roofing Design Contract Ammendment
	0013_1_2023 AWWTP A-Building Ceiling Renovation Project
	0014_1_Contract Unit J-23
	0015_1_Contract Unit X-23 (Rebid)
	0016_1_CEA Review Committee Mtg Minutes 3-20-2023
	0017_1_Utilities Committee - 04-11-23 - Award of Contract Unit F-23
	0018_1_CED Re-org
	0018_2_Community Economic Development DRAFT 3.2023
	Community & Economic Development DRAFT 3.2023.vsd
	Page-1


	0018_3_Public Works DRAFT 3.27.23 (1)
	Public Works DRAFT 3.27.23.vsd
	Main
	Engineering
	Operations





